LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING PACKET

Tuesday, September 9, 2014

Mayor Bob Keith

Commissioner John Moore Commissioner Mary Ann Silvey

Commissioner Diane Barrett = Commissioner Bob Cameron




10.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL
September 9, 2014
6:00 p.m.
Lake Lure Municipal Center

AGENDA
Call to Order Mayor
Bob Keith
Invocation (Please rise and remain standing) Attorney
Chris Callahan
Pledge of Allegiance
Approve the Agenda Council

Public Forum: The public is invited to speak on any non-agenda and/or consent
agenda topics. Comments should be limited to less than five minutes.

Staff Reports

Council Liaison Reports & Comments

Consent Agenda:

a. Approve Minutes of the August 12, 2014 Regular Meeting

b. Appoint Pamela Buckingham to Fill Jack Buckingham’s Position on the
Asset Management Task Force

Unfinished Business
New Business:
a. Consider Approval of the Town Fee Schedule for Fiscal Year 2014-2015

b. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 14-09-09 Adopting the Lake Lure
Town Center Small Area Plan

G Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 14-09-09A Endorsing Deannexation
of the Eagle Camp. LLC Property (Tax Pin 1645450)




Page 2 — Town Council Meeting Agenda
September 9, 2014

11.  Public Hearing — Proposed Ordinance No. 14-09-09 Concerning Revisions to the
Town’s Sewer Ordinance

12, Consider Adoption of Ordinance No. 14-09-09 Concerning Revisions to the
Town’s Sewer Ordinance

13.  Adjournment



Agenda Item: 8a









Agenda Item: 8b




Page 1 of 2

Andi Calvert

From: Jack Buckingham [jacbucky@gmail.com]
Sent: Thursday, August 21, 2014 9:28 AM

To: Andi Calvert

Subject: Re: Asset Management Task Force

Hi Andi:

Thanks so much for your email, [ will have to decline as my travel schedule for work has increased since I completed
this form, but let me recommend my wife Pam, she is very interested in working on this and would be a great asset as
well as a great team member. Pam can be reached at this email address buckingham.healthcoachl@gmail.com.
Please feel free to reach out to Pam.

Kind Regards

Jack

On Fri, Aug 15, 2014 at 2:02 PM, Andi Calvert <townclerk@townoflakelure.com> wrote:

Thank you for volunteering to serve on the Town of Lake Lure's asset management task force.

Town council voted to appeint the following people to serve in the group:

Andy Bell

Jack Buckingham
Charlie Ellis
Jonathan Hinkle
Tom McKay

Mike Holden

Linda Turner

If your name is listed above, someone will be in contact with you soon concerning the group. If your name is not on the list and
you applied to serve in the group, | will keep your application on file to be considered for future appointments.

8/25/2014



Agenda Item: 10a




GENERAL FEES

TOWN OF LAKE LURE
FEE SCHEDULE

Effective: July 10, 2012

Discounted Rate (for qualifying

Rental Facilities Standard Rate charitable events /Town f}ecuml)‘f oi Tms:'F
Employees epos isposal Fee
Lake Lure Pavilion (Gazebo) - per event $400 $100 $250 $189
Community Hall - Half Day Rental (<4 Hours) $100 $50 250
Communily Hall - Full Day Rental (>4 Hours) $200 $50 $250
Morse Park Meadows Rental Rates Standard Rate becurlty :rrash
Deposit | Disposal
Meadows - Full Day Rental $250 $250 $189
Meadows - Full Day Rental - Qualifying Charilable Event $100 $250 $189
Recycle Bins $10 each per day
Electric Hook-up $10 per day
Waler Hook-up $10 per day
2 Fortified Wine & Fortified

Beer & Wine Permits Beer Unfortified Wine Unfortified Wine Wine
Off Premise (annual) $5 $10 $10
On Premise (annual) $15 $16 $10 $15
Public Records Research & Reproduction (extensive)
Labor - Town Manager (hourly rate) $75
Labor - Town Clerk (hourly rate) $25
Paper Copies (Black/White) each $0.25
Paper Copies -Color (each page) $0.50
CDI/DVD $5
Other Administrative Fees/Rates
Lake Lure License Plales $15
Lake Front Address Signs $15
County Maps $5
Copies (each) $0.25

$5,forupto
Fax (sending)} pgs. $1/each

add. pg.
NSF - Return Check Fee $25
Printed Police Report $3
FIRE (these fee do not apply to non-profit and charitable events in Town)
Inspection Relnspootion 2nd

Fire Inspection Fee P Reinspection
0 - 2,500 Square Feet 20.00 No Fee $40.00
2501 - 5,000 Square Fest 30.00 No Fee $60.00
5,001 - 10,000 Square Feet 50.00 No Fee 100.00
10,001 - 25,000 Square Feel 60.00 No Fee 120.00
25,001 - 50,000 Square Feet 70.00 No Fee 140.00
50,001 - 100,000 Square Feet 80.00 No Fee $160.00
100,001 - 500,000 Square Feel $100.00 No Fee $200.00
500,001 - PLUS Square Feet $150.00 No Fee $300.00
Carnivals and Fairs $50 per event
Covered Mall Buildings $500 per year

Explosives $50 for 48 hours
$100 for 30 days
Use of Ouldoor Fireworks (does not include peroneel or standby) $100 per event

$500/event after

5th permit issued

in fiscal year
Flammable Liquids $50.00
Fumigation and thermal insecticidal fogging $100.00
Liquid or gas vehicles or equip. in assembly 50.00
Open burning and open flame use 50.00
Pyrotechnics Special weffecls 50.00

Fireworks Tent $300 for 30 days
Assambly Tent $50.00

All other Tents requiring a Permit

Any other operational permits not listed above required by NC Fire Code $50.00
Dedicated Services of Fire/lRescue Personnel

Firefighter (hourly rale or portion of ny hour, 2-hour min.) $30.00
Frre Inspecter/Company Officer

(hourly rate or portion of any hour, 2-hour min.) $50.00

Chief Officer_(hourly rate or portion of ny hour, 2-hour min.)

Dedicated Stanby of Emergeny Apparatus

Support Vehicle Chiefs Vehicle

$25 per hour

Light duty/quick response vehicle, boat $50 per hour
Bursh Truck $75 per hour
Fireboat $100 per hour

Fire Engine/Tanker

$150 per hour




LAND USE

TOWN OF LAKE LURE

FEE SCHEDULE

Effective: July 10, 2011

Subdivision Applications

Master Plan Application $205
Minor - Final Plat $1565
Major Preliminary Plat $510 + $21 per lot
Major Final Plat $310
Plat Review $55

Professional Fees for DRC Reviews

<1 acres of land
disturbance

1-5 acres of land
disturbance

5 or more acres of
land disturbance

Erosion Controal Plan $155 $240 $345
Stormwater System $155 $240 $345
Water System $55 $205 $255
Sewer System $55 $205 $330
Road Plan $30 $135 $270
Sketch Plan (if requested) $230 $230 $230
Each addiotional acre $55
Zoning Applications
Certificate of Zoning Compliance see below

Class | $130

Class Il $155

Class lll $180

Class IV $205
Vacation Rental Permit $255
Conditional Use Permit $255
Special Use Permit $255
Conditional District Application $650
Community Shopping Center $510
Zoning Variance $255
Zoning Text Amendment 5510
Zoning Map Amendment $510
Zoning Appeal $310

; $55 + $1 per sq. ft.
Permanent Sign over 24
$55 + $1 per day

Temporary Sign (waived for nonprofit

comm. events)

Civil Penalties for Zoning Violations

Notice of Violation $0
1st Citation $40
2nd Citation $80
3rd Citation $160
4th Citation $320
Code Enforcement Appeal (Non-Zoning)

Appeals Other than Zoning $50
GIS Maps (Custom Mapping)

24" $15
36" $20
42" $25

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Land Disturbance Applications

<1 acres of land
disturbance

1-4.9 acres of land
disturbance

5 or more acres of
disturbance

<100 sq. ft. no permit
100 sq. ft. - 499 sq. ft. $10
500 sq. ft. - 10,000 sq. ft. $100

> 10,000 sq. ft.

$100/10,00 sq. ft.

One Acre (43,5608q. Ft.)

$400

Each 10,000 over 1 acre

$100

Five Acres $2,500
Each Additional Acre $500
Licenses

Tree Service Provider $10.00

Tree Service Hanbook $12.50




LAKE USE Effective: September 9, 2014
Boat Permits Annual Fee Weekly Fee Daily Fee
Resident Annual Motorized Boat Permit $176

Resident Annual Motorized Weekday Only Boat Permit $94

Resident Annual Motorized 10hp or Less Boat Permit $94

Weekly Timeshare Boat Permit $176

Annual Motorized Fishing Boat Permit (Resident) $66

Annual Motorized Fishing Boat Permit (Non-resident) $121

Non-resident Annual Motorized Boat Permit $560

Non-resident Annual Motorized Weekday Only Boat Permit $341

Non-resident Annual Motorized 10hp or Less Boat Permit $341

Annual Motorized Boat Permit - volunteer firefighters, EMS, town 1

employees complimentary

Daily Motorized Boat Permit (Nonpeak) $33
Daily Motorized Boat Peak Weekday Only Permit $50
Weekly Motorized Boat Permit (Peak Season) $231

Weekly Motorized Boat Permit (Non-peak Season) $121

Annual Non-motorized Boat Permit $28

Weekly Non-motorized Boat Permit $13

Daily Non-motorized Boat Permit $7
Boat Permit Replacement Fee - motorized $17

Boat Permit Replacement Fee - non-motorized $11

Temporary Permit (Special Use) $11

Commercial License Fee $38

Commercial License Fee (Service & Real Estate Classifications) $22

1st Boat - Commercial Motorized Boat Permit Classifications 1

(Livery), 2 (Resort), 3 (Camps), 4 (Ski-Schools), 5 (Tour Boats), & 6 $286

(Fishing Guides)

2nd Boat - Commercial Motorized Boat Permit Classifications 1

(Livery), 2 (Resort), 3 (Camps), 4 (Ski-Schools), 5 (Tour Boats), & & $396

(Fishing Guides)

3rd Boat - Commercial Motorized Boat Permit Classifications 1

(Livery), 2 (Resort), 3 (Camps}, 4 (Ski-Schools), 5 (Tour Boats), & 6 $5672

(Fishing Guides)

Each Additional Boat - Commercial Motorized Boat Permit

Classifications 1 (Livery), 2 (Resort), 3 (Camps), 4 (Ski-Schools), 5 $737

(Tour Boats), & 6 (Fishing Guides)

Commercial Motorized Boat Permit Classifications 7 (Service boats) $231

and 8 (Realtors) - 1st Boat

Commercial Motorized Boat Permit Classifications 7 (Service boats) $396

and 8 (Realtors) - 2nd Boat

Commercial Motorized Boat Permit Classifications 7 (Service boats) $572

and 8 (Realtors) - 3rd Boat

Commercial Motorized 10hp or Less $176

Commercial Non-motorized $44

Marina Slip Rentals Annual Fee

Annual Boat Slip Fee (Property Owners/Residents) $1,100

Annual Boat Slip Fee (Non-residents) $1,500

Civil Penalties (Lake Citations) 1st Offense 2nd Offense 3rd Offense
Class A $50

Class B $65 $125 $250
Class C $125 $250 $500
Class D $1,000

Lake Structure Applications

Lake Structure Permit $150

Shoreline Stabilization $0

Seawall Exemption $100

Decktop Accessory Structure $100

Lake Structure Variance $100

Lake Structure Adm. Appeal $100




; If ) "
- s 3 s 7 Y o i ) (7
WS IS e Clrvunt va e A0 CoterenC O
TOWN OF LAKE LURE
FEE SCHEDULE

UTILITY BILLING Effective: July 1, 2011

, . wr Water Water Sewer Sewer
Wt Seue SonnagHons Inside Rate Outside Rate Inside Rate Outside Rate
Connection 3/4" or less $1,051 $1,313
Connection 1" $1,576 $1,891
Connection 2" $2,627 $2,942
Connection 3" $3,677 $4,202
Connection 4" $5,253 $5,778
Connection 4" or less $1,051 $1,313
Connection 6" $1,576 $1,891
Connections 8" $2,627 $2,942
Discovery of Unapproved Connection: DOt Ta_\p FBeiE

yrs service back
pay

Bimonthly Rates For Lake Lure Users on
Water & Sewer or Water Only
Basic Service Residential $44.00 $89.00 $42.00 $84.00
Basic Service Commercial $53.00 $105.00 $47.00 $95.00
Usage 0-5,000 gals. (per 1,000 gal. rate) $3.68 $7.35 $3.68 $7.35
Usage over 5,000 - 20,000 gals. $4.20 $8.40 $3.94 $7.88
Usage over 20,000 gals. $4.73 $9.46 $4.47 $8.93
Lake Lure User with Sewer Only
Basic Service Residential $69.00 $137.00
Basic Service Commercial < 5,000 gals. $79.00 $158.00
Comm.-Medium User (5,000-20,000 gals.) $132.00 $263.00
Comm.- Large User (>20,000 gals.) $315.00 $630.00
Other Fees j
Late Payment $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00
Water Turn-On Fee (voluntarily turned off) $40.00 $40.00
Transfer Fee $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00
Re-connection Fee (non-payment cutoff) $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00
Note: 3% increase from FY 2011-2012 rates (Lake Lure)
Chimney Rock Water Bimonthly Rates Basic Service
Basic Service Residential $60.00
Usage 0-5,000 gals. (per 1,000 gal. rate) $2.50
Usage over 5,000 - 20,000 gals. $3.00
Usage over 20,000 gals. $4.00
Garbage / Recycling
Curbside Residential Garbage Collection (weekly) free included in taxes
Curbside Collection of Hard Trash or Lake Debris free by appointment
Curbside Recycling Collections $8/month
Recycle Bins (set of 2) $17.24
Recycle Bin Lids (set of 2) $11.00




TOWN OF LAKE LURE
FEE SCHEDULE

UTILITY BILLING Effective: September 9, 2014

Connection 3/4" or less $1,155 $1,445
Connection 1" $1,735 $2,080
Connection 2" $2,890 $3,235
Connection 3" G $4,045 54,620
Connection 4" $5,780 $6,355
Connection 4" or less $1,155 $1,445
Connection 6" $1,735 $2,080
Connections 8" $2,890 $3,235
Discovery of Unapproved Connection: Deagble Tgp Fee+ 2

yrs service back

pay

Basic Service Residential $49.00 $98.00
Basic Service Commercial $59.00 $116.00
Usage 0-5,000 gals. (per 1,000 gal. rate) $4.05 $8.10
Usage over 5,000 - 20,000 gals. $4.65 $9.25
Usage over 20,000 gals. $5.20 $10.45
Residential User $77.00
Comm.- Small User $105.00
Comm.-Medium User $210.00
Comm.- Large User $330.00 $650.00
Comm.- X Large User $725.00
Comm.- XX Large User $1,450.00
Late Payment $25.00 $25.00 $25.00
Water Turn-On Fee (voluntarily turned off) $40.00 $40.00 £ s e
Transfer Fee $20.00 $20.00 $20.00
Re-connection Fee (non-payment cutoff) $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00

Note: 2% increase from FY 2010-2011 rates (Lake Lure)

Basic Service Residential $60.00
Usage 0-5,000 gals. (per 1,000 gal. rate) $2.50
Usage over 5,000 - 20,000 gals. $3.00
Usage over 20,000 gals. $4.00

Curbside Residential Garbage Collection (weekly) free included in taxes
Curbside Collection of Hard Trash or Lake Debris free by appointment
Curbside Recycling Collections $8.50/month

Recycle Bins (each) $9.00

Recycle Bin Lids (each) $6.00




Agenda Item: 10b



TOWN OF LAKE LURE
Zoning and Planning Board

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor & Town Couﬁcil
FROM: Thomas McKay, Chair
DATE:  September 2, 2014
RE: Resolution Adopting Town Center Small Area Plan

As you may recall, Town Council commissioned the Zoning and Planning Board to develop a
Town Center Small Area Plan working closely with various stakeholder groups. The Town
Center Small Area Plan is made up three smaller plans:

e Pedestrian Bridge & Bay Area Plan
o Rocky Broad Gateway Plan
e Main Street Master Plan

Working closely with town staff, the Planning Board developed a scope of work and chose to
enter into an agreement with Knight Strategies. In turn Knight Strategies worked closely with
three respective stakeholder groups regarding each of the plans above. The Planning Board is
pleased to announce that the Town Center Small Area Plan is now complete and ready for review
and adoption.

The Planning Board recommends the town use these plans for guidance only and not interpret
them as blueprints. The Planning Board expressed the importance of affording investors the
flexibility and freedom to share their own values and proposals compatible with those expressed
by these plans.

Pedestrian Bridge & Bay Area Plan

The site plan was reviewed but the bridge itself was not studied in detail. The Planning Board did
pot have any significant issues. However, the main issue expressed in the past regarding this
particular plan has been the large potential cost of the bridge depicted in the plan. When the
town solicits design + build proposals, companies should be allowed to propose a cost effective
solution.)

Rocky Broad Gateway Plan

The Planning Board did not have any significant issues with this plan.

P. O. Box 255, Lake Lure, NC 28746 ¢ Phone 828-625-9983, Ext. 115, Fax 828-625-8371




Main Street Master Plan

The Planning Board expressed the following regarding this plan:

Ensure the Veterans Memorial will be relocated and enhanced

Respect views of the lake from existing commercial buildings by not obstructing with
additional commercial buildings along the new main street

Maintain a view corridor from the proposed conference center building to the beach
Revisit relocation of 64/74A and ensure a traffic plan is implemented to alleviate gridlock
around the beach helping with public safety

Make NCDOT’s traffic model (developed during the Comprehensive Transportation
Plan) available for the public to view on the Town’s website

Emphasize the Lake Lure Parkway is a relocation of 64/74A and not a bypass

Make it known that the plan is for mixed use emphasizing residential uses and not just
commercial retail vses

Emphasize the town’s desire to bury utility lines in the future as new development takes
place

P. O. Box 255, Lake Lure, NC 28746 < Phone 828-625-9983, Ext. 115, Fax 828-625-8371




e - ~ 1 0 e







& e sk S
Fihing AMALISS
s | U vt Sesdns n

e Lo

g ke s

T L) [E)
o EreTREn e M) e )

== VST MR FTEE] Py B

BT S| snie T i | nsn

B R [EL) B Lo | e

= ::mi Tuson| T

Tor L) MED

J i) Seaa | nen

o= T Bime | ma

(¥ 753 L T

e e momn | eemn

\ =) ] BEUEE)

A ERET ) GEam|  sam

FCEE) Swe| iean

= Seio Smas] e

A it T, insm| amsl

T ] Y] M

T wene|  wee| i i, FIGIE)

- Frmg e vt Bared P ) s
et Pt 1

it rrking vy rione) )

"FUBLIC
PARK

i ™
e £y
@)\ i
0 T q
)
'J‘. -
) Sl S 4

SECTION ‘B’




CONCEPT HIGHLIGHTS:

+ Stylized elevation to mimic Lake Lure Historic NCDOT Bridges.

+ Creates 24'-3" wide 12' high clearance for Fire Boat.
+ Requires (3) piers o be constructed in water,

« Pravides Reatroom and Changing Room Facilities.

+ Creales Stage / Overlook Terrace at main entry.

« Most Bridga Fealures will ba cast-in-place concrete.

‘Waters of Lake Lure

(1) Bridge Entry- Stairway with Restrooms & Changing Roam underneath
o

( ﬂ Bridge Decking - 8" clear width

"L

(ﬁ Hiking Trail with step acceas to bridge

P4
L-I ) Stone Terrace Overlaok
-




Town Center Master Plan
2014

Town Centexr Master Plan

1926 Draper
Master Plan

Town Centex Master Plan

1926 Draper
Business Center Plan ;]

1926 Draper
Bird's Eye View

hpEEE

1uREvant

e G

Town Center Master Plan

2011 Chimney Rock
State Park Master Plan

=\ Soke Lre

":“‘_‘gn{é Lovee




Town Center Master Plan

2012 Land Design
Master Plan

. :‘gw%‘z}{e _‘51.’16

Town Center Master Plan

2013 NCDOT
Transportation Plan
(Phase 1,2 & 3)

I';:F.\t'll(t Sarne

Small Area Plan

Hwy 64/74A Relocation

Town Center Master Plan

2014 Revised
Master Plan

ke Line




Town Center Miastex Plan

2014 Morse Park
Bridge

Main Street Plan

Why is it being done?
+ 2007-2027 Comp ivo Plan dation

+ Topm Gouncil authorized ils ereation
+ Planning Board crealed the scope of workand launched the initiative

Who did it?

+ Main Street Masler Plan Stakeholder Steering Commiltee
+ ILake lare Planning Board

+ Knight Strategies, PA (on confracl)

What goals were established during the Steering Committee Meetings?

« Goal#1 - Create a plan that celebrates the architecture of the Lake Lure Inn,

+ Coal #2 - Devalopa plan Lo date the fture jon of NG 64/74A.

+ Goal 3 - Develop a mixed-use development plan thal creates a main elreet corridor while preserving open
space and the connection to the lake.

+ Goal #4 - Propose Highesl and Best use for ABC Store property.

'%‘_‘fm{(‘ Lo

%
g
%
o
[
3
g
&
[

Main Street Plans

PATXING ANALYRS
Laba e Tewn Cester | Maia St Seaat Area Pas
ok 560000 CE]

[rcadetativg oo | 4006 16000 ()
CEIETT iypauma] 1400000 ] 1600060
Esting 7 siam|  sisam
Bating 3 [FET] BT
atizad n
Eaii=es
[eie i
o tiae 7 1040000 I
1] 625100 1000
sking8 OB 3500
ais2g 10 800
1o 11 3500 [T}
hodmg 11 3605
s1dng 11 1o0m
iidng 11 LE®
8 idwg 1§ S00000

54,625 60 11,%5803 17,800.00 3300000 12460
ParkingPrgdred (UL D.ared Parking) o5
Pacing Provied e
et Parkkeg Overvgef[hartoge) ]




Main Street Diagram

Main Street Cross-Sections

Main Street Plan

Using it as a guide, it will assist the town in the effort to make bette:

decisions relative to

+ Water Distribution (line size & location)

+ Bewer Collection (line size &location)

+ Transporiation Facilities (walkways, bikeways, streels)

+ Land Use (zoning districts)

. ic Growth & ing I )

RECOMMENDATIONS & PRIORITIES

+ Recommendation - Priority #1; Develop Markeling Material lo seek private investment in Town Center.

. a dation - Priority #2: Consi ion of ABG Store in 1-3 years.

+ Recommendation — Priority #3: Engage State Loaders and continua to viork with CRSF to devalop priorilies,

+ Recommendation — Priority f#4: All utilities (pover, telephone, fiber, elc) should be lacated underground in Town
Center as redevelopment occurs:

NEXT STEPS
+ Present to Town Conncil Ssplember 9, 2014 for review and adeption

* Begin ion of Ry 'rioritis

Small Area Plan

Hwy 64/74A Relocation




Rocky Broad Gateway Plan

Why is it being done?

» 2007-2027 C: hensive Plan

+ Town Council autherized its development

+ Planning Board created the scope of work and launched the initiative

Who did it?
+ Rocky Broad Gateway Pl
+ lLake Lure Planning Board
+ Enight Strategies, PA (on contract)

Steering C

What goals were established during the Steering Committee Meetings?
+ Goal #1 —Racover the money invested in the Carr Properly in 10-16 years,

+ Goal #2 —Creale a welcoming entrance into Lake Lurs and Ghimney Rock Village.

+ Goal #3 - Creale Connections on centrally located property (TOLL, GRY, GRSP, Rocky Broad River, lake).

S

PARKING ANALYSIS

Lake Lure Town Center | Rocky Broad Gateway Small Area Plan
o : ot i

E fudwe  ReuilAea _ Offcediea R
Outdaor Adventure Center 9,000.00 1

B [euiding1 5,000.00 1
:E Building 2 5,000.00 1

|Building 3 5,000.00 1
H |Building 4 6,000.00 1
<1 (Camping 25 spaces
o3 24,000,00 - 6,000,00
o
. Parking Required (ULl Shared Parking) 195

Parking Provided 210

Net Parking Overage/{Shortage) 15

Pro

Rocky Broad Gateway Plan

Rocky Broad Gateway Elevations

W‘_ga((, _.%&’ze:




Rocky Broad Gateway Plan

Using it as a guide, it will assist the town in the effort to make hetter
decisions relative to

+ Water Distribntion (line size & location)

+ Sawer Collection (line size & localion)

+ Transporiation Facilities (walkways, bikeways, streels)

« Land Use (zoning districts)

. i th & il )

RECOMMENDATIONS & PRIORITIES

+ Recommendation — Priority #1: Develop Marksting Malerial lo seek private investment for Gatevay Propertios.

+ Recommendation - Priority #2: Ulilize Carr Property as public park space for 6-10 years.

+ Recommendation — Priority #3: Engage State Lead d i to facililate p: hips between TOLL, CRV,
CRSP, LLFB, HNG Chamber & Rutherford County TDA.

NEXT STEPS
+ Present lo Town Council Septeruber 8, 2014 for revievw and adoplion
+ BeginImp ion of R i jorities

e Sne




RESOLUTION NO. 14-09-09

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE LAKE
LURE TOWN CENTER SMALL AREA
PLAN

WHEREAS, the Town of Lake Lure was in need of a Town Center Small Area Plan
(“TC SAP”) as identified in 2007-2027 Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, Town Council commissioned the Lake Lure Planning Board to develop the
TC SAP; and

WHEREAS, Planning Board divided the TC SAP in three distinct areas in need of their
own respective plans:

e Pedestrian Bridge - Bay Area
s Rocky Broad Gateway
¢ Main Street

WHEREAS, the Planning Board developed a scope of work and entered into an
agreement with Knight Sirategies to secure professional services to develop plans for all
three areas; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Board solicited input from voters, property owners, business
owners, community leaders, and residents of the Town of Lake Lure through stakeholder
steering committee meetings and design charettes regarding the future development of all
three areas in the Town Center and produced plans as follows:

e DPedestrian Bridge Bay Area Plan
e Rocky Broad Gateway Plan
e Main Street Master Plan

WHEREAS, these three area plans taken together are the TC SAP; and

WHEREAS, the TC SAP builds on the 1926 Draper Plan and aligns with the previously
adopted plans:

2007-2027 Comprehensive Plan

2011 Chimney Rock State Master Plan
2012 Town Center Master Plan, Phase 1
2013 Comprehensive Transportation Plan

WHEREAS, the Town of Lake Lure Zoning and Planning Board, at its August 12, 2014
meeting, reviewed the final drafi of the Lake Lure TC SAP and the associated slide
presentation and recommended approval to the Town Council; and



Page 2 .

WHEREAS, Planning Board Chair’s September 2, 2014 cover memo and staff’s slide
presentation are made part of the TC SAP by reference and adopted herewith; and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE TOWN COUNCIL OF
THE TOWN OF LAKE LURE, NORTH CAROLINA adopts the 2014 Lake Lure

Town Center Small Area Plan to serve as a guide for the development of the Lake Lure
Town Center over the long term,

Adopted this 9" day of September, 2014.

ATTEST:

Andrea Calvert Mayor Bob Keith
Town Clerk




Agenda Item: 10c



TOWN OF LAKE LURE
Community Development Department

MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor & Town Council

FROM:  Shannon Baldwin, Community Development Director
DATE:  September 5, 2014

RE: Request for Resolution Endorsing De-annexation

As you are aware, Lynn Carnes and Russ Pitts, owners of Mystic Waters Farm, are requesting
Town Council pass a resolution endorsing a bill to deannex their property from the Town of
Lake Lure. The owners believe this to be a win-win scenario for the Town and themselves. In
their opinion, the Town staff and multiple boards would no longer be responsible for regulating
uses (rural in nature) not normally associated with municipal operations and services on their
property. They believe theii uses pose no negative impact on other citizens or neighboring
property owners. The owners make the case that the Town would never have to consider
adjusting its regulatory provisions or programs {0 accommodate their rural-oriented uses, if the
property is deannexed. They also make the case that if amendments are requested and passed in
support of their rural uses while in town this could inadvertently open the door for other in-town
landowners applying for rural uses on other in-town properties. The owners feel their business
operations will fully comply with county and state regulations, now and in the future. The
supporting rationale provided by the property owners for this request includes the following
points:

o Half in/Half out: The Town Limits line bisects the property and creates confusion
where town regulations and county regulations apply. Staff: Other in-town properties
are in a similar condition.

e Rural Use: The primary uses of the land are conservation and agriculture, but Town
regulations primarily address residential and commercial uses. Town regulations prevent
the owners from conducting typical farm uses. The State (via NC DENR) classifies the
non-conserved land as agriculture use. Staff: Other in-town properties are in a similar
condition.

e Services: The Town does not currently provide water, trash pickup or sewer services to

the property. Staff: Other in-town propetties are in a similar condition.

e Proximity: The location of property is geographically isolated from neighboring
properties within the Town Limits, sits on the southwest corner of the town boundary,
and has no impact to other citizens or adjacent properties. There are no Town residences

P. O. Box 255, Lake Lure, NC 28746 < Phone 828-625-9983, Ixt. 115, Fax 828-625-8371




cither in sight of or in earshot of the parcel. Staff: Other in-town propetties are in a
similar condition.

e Conservation: The land on the entire boundary next to other in-town properties — Ingles,
Lake Lure Medical Park and Mary Ann Dotson - is conserved for perpetuity. Even if
ownership changes, that land can never be developed. Staff: Other in-town properties
are in a similar condition.

e Magnitude: When considering the area of the property currently within Town Limits,
only about 35 acres or 21% of the total area is not conserved.

e Access: The area of the property currently within the Town Limits can only be reached
via roads outside of Town Limits. In short, one must drive from the Town Limits into the
county, then back into Town’s jurisdiction again to reach the portion of this property
within the Town Limits. Staff: Other in-town properties are in a similar condition.

e Future use: The landowners plan to expand the agricultural use of the parcel while
protecting conserved land on the property. They do not plan to ask the Town to deliver
water, sewer or trash services to the parcel.

o Property Tax: Until 2011, this property paid no taxes to the Town of Lake Lure due to
non-profit use. Taxes to Lake Lure in 2012 were $992 and 2013 were $1,076 or 8% of
the total property tax bill for the parcel, and is about .05% of the town’s total tax base.

Please note staff edited some of these points for clarity and has chosen not to respond to them
other than to say that the property owners have made very clear and logical arguments in support
of their request. The property owners have identified deannexation characteristics that should be
analyzed carefully as the Town considers requests of this nature. In my opinion, the owners are
assisting the Town in developing an objective standard to evaluate their request and possibly
future requests. Some of the questions that come to mind regarding any future deannexation
requests are:

1. What standard methodology should be used by the Town of Lake Lure to determine if
deannexation requests are in the Town’s best interest? Do we evaluate the character of the
request based on.....

e Property: size, percent classified as urban development, percent in town, percent not in
town

o Uses: types, compatibility with existing town uses, impacts on adjacent in-town
propetties, perpetual limitations on uses via easements, impacts of possible future uses on
in-town properties

e Municipal Infrastructure & Services Provided/Available: water, sewer, police, fire,
streets, garbage, public works, recreation, code enforcement, etc.

o Accessibility: via town streets, private streets, directly from Town Limits

e Contiguity: property abuts town limits versus property is satellite property

e FExisting Development: percent developed, distance to other developed (“urban”) arcas,
etc.

o Lake Impacts: tributaries, topography, soil types, erosion potential, stormwater run-off,
ete.

P. O. Box 255, Lake Lure, NC 28746 < Phone 828-625-9983, Ext. 115, Fax 828-625-8371




e Revenue Loss: Property Tax, Sales Tax & Powell Bill Funds
e Population Decrease
e Other Health, Safety, or General Welfare Concerns

2. What other property owners (with properties with similar qualities/characteristics) could
possibly make a request for deannexation?

e Roland King Properties (Tax PIN: 1646218, 1649990, etc.)

Michelle Morton Property (Tax PIN: 1642050)

State Park Properties (Tax PIN: 1637732, 1637731, 1646225, 1646225, etc.)
Carolina Climbers Coalition Properties (Tax PIN: 1647374)

John H. Moore Properties (Tax PIN: 1637730, etc.)

Alan Moore Properties (Tax PIN: 1637728, etc.)

e Other properties not listed

3. How do we process the deannexation request (and future requests) so that the town is .....

e Fair to all concerned (applicant/petitioner, future applicants/petitioners, current town
property owners, and future town property owners)

e Securing common good (the best for the majority of town residents/property owners)

e Making consistent decisions based standards or principles

4. What precedent will the Town set by accommodating a request for deannexation? Can the
Town replicate its decision fairly and consistently relative to other future applicants/petitioners
as it works to secure the common good for in-town property owners/voters?

e Yes, Town Council will support the request and this is why.....
e No, Town Council will not support the request and this is why....

Staff Recommendation: Town Council forward this request to the Planning Board for careful
study and recommendation regarding development of a standard methodology the Town can
consistently apply to this deannexation request and future deannexation requests. After the
methodology is developed, apply it to the deannexation request and forward a recommendation
back to Town Council for consideration.

P. O. Box 255, Lake Lure, NC 28746 < Phone 828-625-9983, Ext. 115, Fax 828-625-8371



Mystic Waters Farm LLC

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor & Town Council
FROM:  Lynn Carnes Pitts and Russ Pitts, Owners
Mystic Waters Farm, LLC (formerly known as Eagle Camp
LLC)
DATE:  September 3, 2014
RE: Request for Adoption of Resolution Endorsing Deannexation

of Mystic Water Farm, LLC Property (formerly Eagle Camp,
LLC /TAX PIN 1645450)

Mystic Waters Farm LLC, formerly known as Eagle Camp LLC requests a
resolution from the Town Council endorsing a bill to deannex the parcel from
the town. This is a win-win option for the town and for the owners. The
town (including staff and multiple boards) no longer has to oversee rural,
non-town activities on a property that have no risk of impacting other citizens
or property owners. Nor does the town have to adjust its regulations to adapt
to a single property owner for a use that might inadvertently open the door to
other undesirable impacts. The owners are able to conduct normal rural
business within county and state regulations. Supporting rationale for the
move includes:

e Half in/Half out: The town line bisects the property, and has
created confusion over where town rules and county rules apply.

Mystic Waters Farm LLC . 109 Camp Hill Road . Mill Spring, NC 28756



Weters

Mystic Waters Farm LLC

Rural Use: The primary uses for the land are conservation and
agriculture, where town regulations primarily address residential
and commercial use. Town regulations prevent the owners from
conducting typical farm uses. DENR classifies the non-conserved
land as agriculture use.

Services: The town currently provides no water, trash pickup or
sewer services to the property.

Proximity: Location of property is separated from the rest of the
town, sitting on the southwest corner of the town boundary, and has
no impact to other citizens or adjacent properties. There are no
town residences either in sight of or in earshot of the parcel.
Conservation: The entire boundary next to other town properties —
Ingles, Lake Lure Medical Park and Mary Ann Dotson - is
conserved for perpetuity. Even if ownership changes, that land can
never be developed.

Magnitude: As a percentage of the parcel in town limits, only
about 35 acres or 21% of the total parcel is not conserved.

Access: The part of the property inside town limits can only be
reached via roads outside of town limits.

Future use: Landowners plan to expand the agricultural use of the
parcel while protecting conserved land on property. They do not
plan to ask the town to deliver water, sewer or trash services to the
parcel.

Property Tax: Until 2011, this property paid no taxes to the Town
of Lake Lure due to non-profit use. Taxes to Lake Lure in 2012
were $992 and 2013 were $1,076 or 8% of the total property tax
bill for the parcel, and is about .05% of the town’s total tax base.

Mystic Waters Farm LLC . 109 Camp Hill Road . Mill Spring, NC 28756




STATE OF NQRTH CARCLINA
COUNTY OF RUTHERFDRD

l. » Roview Officer of Rutharford
County, cartify that the mop or plat to which

thie cartlfication I afflxad meats oft statutory
raquiremants far roording.

REFEREHCE BEARNG

Haviaw Otficar

Date; I

ROBERTQ VERDE
and wifs

\ I3
A

N\ /

TINA KAREM RAY

0B 837634 Ay

NELON TRUST
b8 &11/218 A

i
!
I~
SOLANGEL VERDE N
D6 820/338 p

TEEE

Nettgze B

NeC's'O3"E
LU
UNE TABLE T NGIEEONE
URE BEARMNG | DISTANCE g1.84 ﬁ Z
R 2650 | 1.3 564735'08°F B
Iﬁllﬂmhpmﬂzwum 007E | 29.09 | 17.31" (T} &7,
R3S NS 37" S35 | .//
R4 NTZ'A5'50" 30,63 -
RS 1 NGEI2ieq 351.43_| Pre NE4IS'OBW
RE (o827 - - 256.89' =)
B 39| e NELON nELSGN )
167.92 e 425,588 b
580z |, * i
15138 b =]
57.68
38.58 =
28,72
2813
2453 ~\
7851 - d
4213 \V/ / o
26,04 LAKE LURE PROPERTIES, LLC i AN
[ 3547 1030,/247 MY \/
R20 NE9'Z1'STE 07T P
R2ZT NEES1'17E 8751 /za__ﬁmaum W
R2Z NE4SE L | 15528 .
R23 NN001E Bi7S HELEN NELON NELSON zrm...n_ﬂww WA
(—R24 | wmopsaste | SGTE b8 883/771 "
R3S SBAR'STUE 047
RZE SE745°3"E | 5404
RZ7 NEEISEOE | 6928
Rz NS0z 79.76
Fiag T CAMP HiLL ROAD
R30 NS EIZ T10.61 SR 1187
RM I NGTDEOZ | B30 40" R'W f
L R32 | ne«te'os'e 573 60" MAINTENANGE RW &Y
R3S S78IREOTE 55.69
RM SEENTO4E | 61,50 L
733 $Tz3TI0E, 1 4650 5
R3E NELIFTE 40.50 by
RS7 | febssomg | 45.90 g
R38 NOTASI4'E | 37.35 Z
RIS NTIT31 447w 50.03 1P
QLAY £ MELON \
TEomT [Z] _En\%_/ﬂ
®  SUSTING IRON FIN (SF; 3
O NEW IRON P 9\__3ﬂ ? R
+ POINT
A NAL OR RALROAD SPIRE
T HYDRANT
B POWER BOX
O TELEPHONE PEDESTAL (PED} JERRY DALE NELON
O CLEANGUT (€0} and wite P o
B LGHT FOLE or Late gl ety NS
@ UTUTY FOLE
o) WATER VALVE SaRSERVATION mﬁmzmﬁm%m_ﬂm 3 w,@w&
® WATER METER (wrm) T oneg TE LA @M.ﬁ 3
ej AT VALVE
© SEWER MANHOLE
B STORM DRAIN
O (RRIGATION CONTROL VALVE (iCV)
[ CONGRETE MONUMENT
[XI RIGHT OF WAY MONUMENT
@ sonE

N sgag
g3y

uo Tt

LlEY
[vs:]

i R

o)

a3
gee/se 89

I, Dancld McEntira, Professional Land Survayer Ne. L—4183,

caortlfy to one_or more of the following o8 Indicated

thus, @ or [J:

[EC. That thiz plat Is of @ survsy of cn axfating parcel or
parcels of land,

NORTH OF THE LAKE

o8

WHITSON EDWARDS

and wite
PAULINE M. EDWARDS
DB 3547237
LINE TABLE
BEARING DISTANCE
N W | aas8 |
58405 497 7.5t

SEQ77'14 41.56

SITAGSEW | 6404

clslglslelslcilss

1. Reference [a made to surwiy ond plat for Mory Ann
Dotean dated February 12, 2003 by High Courtry
Survayors, ine. .

2. Referance ls moda to survey ond plat for Homets
Nest Gl Scout councll, Inc. by Assogicted Serviems Land
Department doted December 15, 1881,

3, Referonce la modo to aurvey and piot for Hefen Nelan
Nelaon by Willam Brodiey doted Aprll 18, 2001 ond
ammande Nov. 25, 2003,

4. Referenca I3 mode to aurvey ond plot far Variin and
Shidey Gingerich by D. Taylor dated Jonuary 14, 2008,
S.Roferenca in made to plat of Junior Lake Colony dated
duly 1827 and recorded ot Plot Bock 2 Poge 22.

6. Referenca Ta magde 4o plot ond survey for Dr. Donald
Adama ond wife Dlone Adama by thia offico doted
Februory 25, 2008 and recorded ot Plat Beok 29 Puags
4

6. Referanco is made to plat and survay for Sadle R.
Whaon recorded ot Map Silde A—177, Poge 94,

7. Reference i3 mads to plat angd surway by thia office
for Tha Dougloa Compony ond Verlln Glngerich datad
Moreh 2, 2007,

5227316 42,48
SOSOT 23 W | 48,67
SUSPAIEE | Saw |
SDO3ESTE | 6556
siz0ress | sosi |

8, Informatior on the right of way of SR 1187 was from
the NC Copartmant of Tronaporition.

i NC HIGHWAY 8 AND SR 1186
28554y
Tarzgs
KIMBERLY RENEE CORSITT 5]
DB 743774 NCGS MONUMENT GANE CREEK
La \ NORTHING: E19089.9018
i \ EASTING: 10479917782
Hemzenre | NAD 83 /2001
\ 17300 .
Aee, .~ — VERLIN D. GUNGERICH
e OB 744,862
Si52eanE
127.76"
ap
SOTEX2EMW — BA.21
b

SITATSEW
&35

I, Daneld R. McEntire, cortlfy that thiz plat woa drown
under my superviaion from an octual survay made
undar my supervision {deed dascription recordod

In Deed Book _230 . Page_ 73 3t that tha boundories
not surveyed are clearty Jndicatod ca drown from
Infarmatien found in Bock ———. Page —-m ; that
the ratlo of praglylon as caledlated (s 1:1000C;

that this plat way prapared In accordonce with G.5,
47-30 g8 omended, Wiinoss my hand and seal thia

7th day af Jonuary  AD 2012,
DONALD McENTIRE, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO, L—+183
Lend Su r
Ucanaors Narmbey L4183
UNE TABLE
- LINE. BEARING DISTANCE
i e B “wocsrw T emos
2 56157 74.31
bonate % \wmﬁzu [o———— [+] NOTS16" 2324
PE 2544 1 i E4 NIDTSO6E_ | 67.56
oy, ES | NOZ2X24°e | 63.60
m.“%u = / f 6 N2I4T 4T 0185
455 ! / E7 | neseecw | 61,99
—_ ! E8 | Sepyagw | 1097
CONSERVATION EASEMENT AREA "A" -l 5] NeFEaAETW | 116,73

Bl | Seladzew | ShZs

E12 ST1'45'38"W 151.03

DONALD P. ADAMS E135 Mu%&-i 143.08
0B ssdsme &+ T nooqgsg | 7599
PR 28/44 E15 | wigazesow | sS4z

zn_du..w,u.v\
72256 (7 =
E21 | nersgosw | 708
INGLES MARKETE ING, j127 EZ2 NISOIITW | 86,27
D5 B36/621 i E25 | NS mastw | 9644
/ [E2¢ T sorsemg | 35945
A 25 | crevousia | sa6s
20 = E26 | 52747167 9348
7 = E27 NT2EE" 5 T494
/ i ..W X
s e
r =
/ I
me /

CONSERVATION EASEMENT AREA “B™ .
SOUTH OF THE LAKE ES4 83106177V 74,47
15,38 ACRES E55 Sog'zetdaw | 18538
ESG S4131m0" 27212

This donated conservatlon ecasment s funded by NG Clean Water
£1P Manegement Truat Fund Contract # 20100-0%,
=~ MNumber of Nlnear feet of atream buffored on both aldes: 2,748°
Humber of finear feet of otracm buffered on cne alde: 726"

Ravisad August 27, 2012 to show conservotion sassment,
EAGLE CAMP, LLC

DEED BOOK 230/78, 1017 /368
TAX MAP 528 BLOCK 1 PARCEL 8
TAX PIN 1545450
CHIMNEY ROCK TOWNSHIP ~ RUTMERFORD COUNTY. NG
FIELD: N. ODOM, DM MAP: N. ODOM, DMeENTIRE
DATE: JANUARY 7, 2011 MAP# 22536

GRAPHIC SCALE
a0

00 [ 130 000 200

1 INCH = 300 FEET
DONALD WMcENTIRE SURVEYING
108 iSHAM DRIVE
RUTHERFORDTON, NC 28135
PHONE: B28-287-0433
dmeantireGoellsouth.net




RESOLUTION NO. 14-09-09A

RESOLUTION ENDORSING
DEANNEXATION OF THE EAGLE CAMP,
LLC PROPERTY (TAX PIN 1645450)

.WHEREAS, the town line bisects the property, and has created confusion over where
town rules and county rules apply; and

WHEREAS, the primary uses for the land are conservation and agriculture, where town
regulations primarily address residential and commercial use; and

WHEREAS, Town regulations prevent the owners from conducting typical farm uses;
and

WHEREAS, DENR classifies the non-conserved land as agriculture use; and

WHERFEAS, the town curtently provides no water, trash pickup or sewer services to the
property; and

WHEREAS, the location of property is separated from the rest of the town, sitting on the
southwest corner of the town boundary, and has no impact to other citizens or adjacent
properties; and

WHEREAS, there are no town 1631dences either in sight of or in earshot of the parcel;
and

WHEREAS, the entire boundary next to other town properties — Ingles, Lake Lure
Medical Park and Mary Ann Dotson - is conserved for perpetuity. (Even if ownership
changes, that land can never be developed); and

WHEREAS, as a percentage of the parcel in town limits, only about 35 acres or 21% of
the total parcel is not conserved; and

WHEREAS, the part of the property inside town limits can only be reached via roads
outside of town limits; and

WHEREAS, the landowners plan to expand the agricultural use of the parcel while
protecting conserved land on property; and o

WHERFEAS, the landowners do not plan to ask the town to deliver water, sewer or trash
services to the parcel;



Resolution No. 14-09-09A
September 9, 2014
Page 2

WHEREAS, until 2011, this property paid no taxes to the Town of Lake Lure due to
non-profit use. Taxes to Lake Lure in 2012 were $992 and 2013 were $1,076 or 8% of
the total property tax bill for the parcel, and is about .05% of the town’s total tax base.;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE TOWN COUNCIL OF
THE TOWN OF LAKE LURE, NORTH CAROLINA endorses the deannexation of
the Eagle Camp, LLC Property (Tax PIN 1645450). See attached survey (Exhibit “A”).

Adopted this 9" day of September, 2014,

ATTEST:

Andrea Calvert Mayor Bob Keith
Town Clerk



Agenda Item: 11 & 12



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that at 7:00 p.m., on September 9, 2014, at the Lake Lure Municipal
Center, 2948 Memorial Highway, Lake Lure, North Carolina, the Lake Lure Town Council will
hold a public hearing with regard to the following matter:

Ordinance #14-09-09: An Ordinance amending the Sewer Ordinance

The public is advised that it has the right to appear at said public hearing and present information
with regard to this matter. Copies of the proposed ordinance are available for public inspection
at the Lake Lure Municipal Center, 2948 Memorial Hwy, 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday
through Fridays, holidays excepted.



Office of the Town Manager

TO: Mayor and Commissioners

FROM: Chris Braund

DATE: September 2, 2014

RE: Proposed Amendments to Chapter 51 Sewer Regulations

The purpose of this memo is to outline the changes and new content in the proposed revision to Chapter 51 of
the Town’s code of ordinances. This chapter covers sewer regulations and, over the past 5 years, we have
noted several weaknesses and inconsistencies that needed to be addressed. Our staff worked with Harlow
Brown of Brown Consulting to do an extensive update, addressing these issues and bringing in modern
language and best practices in municipal sewer administration. The second half of this project addressed
recommended sewer rate structure (covered in a separate memo).

This new ordinance:

1) Cleans up inconsistencies in the prior Sewer Ordinance. A section of the current ordinance
incorporates the entire 1998 sewer ordinance, resulting in contradictory language. In one section, it
indicates that homes within 200 feet of sewer SHALL connect to the sewer and, in another, that they
MAY connect. The revised ordinance requires all improved property within the town limits that
generates wastewater and is within 200 feet of the town’s sewer infrastructure SHALL be connected to
the town’s system. This is consistent with our requirement for connection to town water. In both
cases, the Manager or Town Council has the authority to waive this requirement due to topography or
other just causes.

2) Incorporates existing policies related to sewer connections, billing and disconnections that currently
exist only in memos outside of the ordinance. This makes it easier for customers to find all applicable
sewer policies in one place.

3) Outlines the Town’s philosophy and policy that we maintain the sewer system up to and ending at the
lake perimeter manholes and that we do not own, operate or maintain any sewer laterals or service
lines beyond these manholes. These are the responsibility of the customers connected to the lines.

4) Clarifies in section 51.26 the procedures for sewer capacity allocation, where individuals or
subdivision developers seek assurance that there is sufficient sewer treatment capacity for their
planned construction project. During the recession when many developments were delayed or
abandoned, it revealed a lack of clarity and consistency in our sewer allocation process. The new
ordinance outlines the process of getting an allocation commitment letter from the Town that is good
for 24 months and requires a non-refundable Allocation Fee (on the rate schedule adopted by Council)




but no monthly service fees until a sewer connection is made. In the past, we’ve collected Tap Fees in
advance and not had clarity on whether they were refundable.

5) Provides a process for reviewing and approving proposed industrial operations for their connection to
the wastewater system and the issuance of special permits for periods up to 5 years (renewable). As an
example, proposed brewing operations in town could receive a special permit to discharge into the
sewer system with appropriate pretreatment and monitoring requirements. The revised ordinance also
provides a means of calculating fees and rates for special industrial projects, should we ever need
them.

6) Creates one “Connection Fee”, streamlining and consolidating various references to Tap Fees, Service
Fees, Impact Fees.

7) Clarifies procedures in the event of non-payment of sewer charges, including cutting/plugging a line at
the property boundary and recovery of delinquent fees through small claims court. This has been
problematic for us in cases where multiple users share a sewer line and the Town has not had any
recourse for disconnecting service for a single user (unlike the water system, where we can simply lock
a valve at the meter box).

8) Incorporates our state-mandated FOG ordinance (Fats, Oils & Grease) into the sewer ordinance.

9) Incorporates the penalty for discovery of an unauthorized connection to the Town sewer system (twice
the tap fee plus 2 years of service fees). This has been a policy first documented in 1990.

Thanks —

Chris

Cc:

Linda Ward, Customer Service Supervisor

Donnie McCraw, Sewer Collection System Supervisor
Harlow Brown, Brown Consulting PA

Don Byers, Byers Environmental

Chris Callahan, Town Attorney



ORDINANCE NUMBER 14-0%9-09

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE V: TOWN UTILITIES, CHAPTER 51

SEWER SYSTEMS

Lake Lure, North Carolina
Chapter 51: Sewer System Ordinance
Table of Contents

Sections Page

51.00
51.01
51.02
51.03
51.04
51.05
51.06
51.07
51.08
51.09
51.10
51.11
51.12
51.13
51.14
51.15
51.16
51.17
51.18
51.19
51.20
51.21

Sewer Service Authority

Management and Control

Purpose and Scope of Sewer Ordinance
Definitions

Administrative procedures; enforcement; penalties; tampering with facilities
Connection to sewer system required
Connections outside of Town Limits
Application for connection; service agreement/permit
Connections to be made under Town supervision
User Charges

Deposits

Sewer connection charges

Consumption and Flat Fee basis of charges
Responsibility for payment of charges
Suspension of service

Permissive use of system

Prohibited discharges

Restricted discharges

Fat, Oil and Grease — (FOG)

Limitations on compatible wastes

Compliance with Federal and state standards

Accidental Discharges

\O\DQO‘*-JU)I—lwy—A

[\JI\J»—!»—-—-»—-»-—L)—A»—l#.—-)—s»—-»—A»—A
M = =] =) =1 N N ot B W W D



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 2

51.22
51.23
51.24
51.25
51.26

51.00

Wastewater monitoring facilities

Wastewater pretreatment facilities

Acceptance of wastewater from private, corporate, and HOA systems
Private sewage disposal systems

Sewer Capital and Allocation

Chapter 51: Sewer System Ordinance

Sewer Service Authority

The Town of Lake Lure, Rutherford County, by virtue and authority granted by its
Charter and by the General Statutes, 160A (have town attorney check this statue), of

the State of North Carolina, is authorized and empowered to acquire, provide,

51.01

construct, establish, maintain and operate a sewer system for the Town and to
extend the system beyond the corporate limits.

Management and Control

o Generally. The management and control of the sewer system is vested in the

Town Manager, to be governed by the provisions of this Chapter and the
policies established and modified from time to time by the Town Council and
all in compliance with the laws of the State of North Carolina.

o Collection System. The Town Manager shall appoint an Operator in

Responsible Charge (ORC) who shall have, or can obtain, NC State
qualifications to operate Lake Lure’s Sewer Collection System under the
general supervision of the Town Manager.

o Treatment System. The Town Manager shall appoint an Operator in

Responsible Charge (ORC) who shall have, or can obtain, NC State
qualifications to operate Lake Lure’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP)
under the general supervision of the Town Manager.

o Customer Service and Financial Operations. The Town manager shall appoint

a Customer Service Representative and a Finance Director who are authorized
to administer the daily customer service and financial operations of the sewer
system under the general supervision of the Town Manager.

o Ordinance Interpretation and Grievance. Interpretation of this ordinance

and/or any person aggrieved by a decision of the ORC, the Customer Service
Representative, or the Finance Director shall have the right of appeal to the

22
23
23
24
24




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 3

Town Manager, who shall have authority to make a final decision on any
ordinance interpretation and appeal. The Manager may defer such appeal to
the Town Council for a final decision.

51.02 Purpose and Scope of Sewer Ordinance

e The Town’s overall operating philosophy for its sewer system starts with the
uniqueness of the collection system itself. The system was installed prior to the
flooding of the lake, and is located on the lake bed, with perimeter manholes on
the lake shore to provide access for sewer customers. Therefore the Town’s
basic philosophy is that the Town owns, operates and maintains this underwater
sewer system up to and ending at the lake perimeter manholes. The Town does
own operate and maintain some sewer lines outside the lake, but these are very
limited.

In all cases, the Town does not own, operate or maintain any sewer laterals or
service lines beyond Town owned manholes. Laterals and service lines that
serve one, two or several customers are the full responsibility of the customers
being served. Costs for operation and maintenance of these laterals and service
lines are the shared responsibility of the customers receiving sewer setvice.

The Town may get involved only as a facilitator between the regulatory
authority and customer should a lateral or service line break or leak results in
environmental damage or contamination to the lake.

e This ordinance is adopted by the Town in compliance with the terms and
provisions of public funds used in the construction, installation, operation,
maintenance and capital improvements of the Town sewer system, and is
intended to ensure beneficial service to users of such system, the prevention of
abuse thereof, and a manner of equitably distributing the costs of services
among the users thereof, recognizing that the physical facilities of the sewer
system, including the trunk sewers, pump stations and force mains, the
treatment plant and other support appurtenances are intended to transport,
convey and treat domestic sanitary wastewater and compatible industrial
wastewater to produce a treated wastewater and byproduct residuals which may
be released into the environment without adverse environmental impact, all
within the regulatory requirements of permits issued by the State for operation
of the sewer system and WWTP.

¢ The objectives of this ordinance and its elements are as follows:
o Elimination of uncontaminated water, groundwater and stormwater which
do not require extensive treatment from the system.
¢ Elimination of waste which will damage the system, or cause excessive
wear, rapid deterioration or depreciation or excessive maintenance thereof,
or which will endanger the safety of maintenance workers or the general



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 4

public by its presence, or which cannot be economically treated, and/or
which will cause a malfunction or breakdown of the treatment process and
result in the water effluent and byproduct sludge being an environmental
hazard from the system.

e To ensure a fair allocation of the cost among the users of the system based
upon voluntary contributions of wastewater of equal strength, recovery of
capital cost contributions of public monies from industrial and commercial
users of the system, and the imposition of a surcharge for loads of
industrial or commercial wastewater which are higher in concentration
than sanitary wastewater.

e No statement contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting any
special agreement or arrangement between the Town and other persons whereby
an industrial waste of unusual strength or character may be admitted into the
system.

51.03 Definitions

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this ordinance, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates
a different meaning:

Action level means the concentration based numeric value that the Grease
interceptor cffluent, at the device’s outlet tee and prior to mixing with any other
wastewater from the contributing establishment’s property, are expected to achieve
on a consistent or stipulated basis.

Allocation, sewer allocation, or sewer capacily allocation means conditional
designations of estimated sewer treatment capacity to a specific owner and project,
subject to all of the provisions of this policy and any document of approval.

Approval authority means the director of the state department of natural resources
and commupity development, division of environmental management.

BOD (denoting biochemical oxygen demand) means the quantity of oxygen utilized
in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory conditions
for five days at 20 degrees Celsius, expressed in milligrams per liter.

Building drain means that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage system
which receives the discharge from soil, waste and other drainage pipes inside the
walls of a building and conveys it to a sewer service line, beginning five feet (1.5
meters) outside the inner face of the building wall.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page S

Common inlerceptor means one or more interceptors receiving FOG laden
wastewater from more than one establishment. Common interceptors may be
Jocated at shopping centers, malls, entertainment complexes, sporting arenas,
hotels, multi-tenant “flex” spaces, mixed use spaces, and other sites where multiple
establishments are connected to a single grease interceptor. The owner of the
property on which the common grease interceptor is located shall be primarily
responsible for the maintenance, upkeep, and repair of the common interceptor.

Compatible wastewater means wastewaters with only those polluting constituents
which are susceptible to adequate treatment in the treatment system works, without
harm to the sewerage system. The term "compatible constituents” has like meaning
with reference to individual wastewater parameters.

Connecting sewers means public sewers connecting to the public sewer system.

Connection fee is a fee charged to defray the cost of the connection of a custoimer's
service line to a sewer main.

Contingent allocations means conditional designations of estimated sewer
treatment capacity that become effective only upon the occurrence of specific
events,

Critical, essential, or highly desirable communily services means commercial,
institutional, or public services that have been identified by an official planning
document or which are found by the Town Council to be vital, under-provided
needs for the residents of the town.

Evaluation criteria are the factors and findings by which applications for sewer
capacity allocations are analyzed and evaluated to assist in decisions regarding
allocations.

Fats, oils, and greases means organic polar compounds derived from animal and/or
plant sources that contain multiple carbon chain triglyceride molecules. These
substances are detectable and measurable using analytical test procedures
established in 40 CRF 136, as may be amended from time to time. All are
sometimes referred to herein as “grease” or “greases” or “FOG”.

Food Service Establishments or “FSE” means those establishments primarily
engaged in activities of preparing, serving, or otherwise making available for
consumption foodstuffs and that use one or more of the following preparation
activities: Cooking by frying (all methods), baking (all methods), grilling, sautéing,
rotisserie cooking, broiling (all methods), boiling, blanching, roasting, toasting, or
poaching, and infrared heating, searing, barbecuing, and any other food preparation
or serving activity that produces a consumable food product in or on a receptacle
requiring washing to be reused.



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 6

FOG enforcemeni response plan means the document and written plan and
procedures by which the ORC implements an enforcement strategy applicable to the
FOG control and management program established herein. The plan applies to
FOG program violations and matters of program noncompliance.  Stipulated
penalties for specific and programmatic infractions are addressed in the plan and set
forth in the Town’s annual budget ordinance. The ORC shall make site and case
specific determinations of program non-conformance in accordance with this
Division 2.

Garbage means solid wastes from the domestic and commercial preparation,
cooking and dispensing of food, and from the handling, storage and sale of produce.

Grease trap or inferceptor means a device for separating waterborne greases and
grease complexes from wastewater and retaining such greases and grease
complexes prior to the wastewater exiting the trap and entering the sanitary sewer
collection and treatment system. Grease traps also serve to collect solids that settle,
generated by and from activities that subject Users to this section, prior to the water
exiting the trap and entering the sanitary sewer collection and treatment system.
Grease traps and interceptors are sometimes referred to herein as “grease
interceptors.”

Impact fee is a fee levied to recover past or future capital cost required to provide
increased capacity of water or sewer facilities

Improved Property means any property which has been altered from its natural
state, or its cwrrent state, by the construction, erection or rehabilitation of a structure
or facility, located upon the ground; and if such completed structure has been
improved for human habitation and/or use and results in the generation of
wastewater which requires treatment.

Incompatible  wastewater —means wastewater containing  constituents  or
characteristics which render it unsuitable for transport or treatment in the sewerage
system. The terms "incompatible constituents” and "incompatible characteristics"
have like meaning with reference to individual wastewater parameters.
Incompatible constituents and characteristics include water paramelers.
Incompatible constituents and characteristics include the elements listed in
prohibitions and may include other elements so identified by the manager and
specified in the user's service permit.

Industrial wastes and high strength wastes mean the liquid wastes from industrial
manufacturing processes, trade or business, or any high strength wastewater, as
distinct from sanitary wastes. Sanitary wastes are defined as wastewalers
originating from domestic sources.



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 7

Infill means building or development that is significantly surrounded by existing
improved propetty, particularly developed property located within the town limits.

Infrastructure installations means improvements (such as streets, sidewalks, water
and sewer mains, and storm water conveyance or mitigation facilities) required by
town subdivision regulations and/or other major facilities improvements required to
prepare the property for building improvements.

Manager means the Town of Lake Lure Manager

Minimum design capability means the design features of a grease interceptor and its
ability or volume required to effectively intercept and retain greases and settled
solids from grease-laden wastewaters discharged to the public sanitary sewer.

Municipality means the Town of Lake Lure.

Natural outlef means any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body
of surface water or groundwater.

Non-cooking establishments means those establishments primarily engaged in the
preparation of precooked foodstuffs that do not include any form of cooking: but
that may produce a consumable food product in or on a receptacle requiring
washing to be reused.

Non-municipal means any user of sewer service other than a customer discharging
normal sanitary (domestic) wastewater.

Onsile grease inferceptor (reatment (sometimes “Onsile Treatment”) means
mechanisms or procedures utilized by a user to treat grease interceptor contents on
the User’s site, followed by the reintroduction of such treated wastewater back into
the interceptor. Onsite grease interceptor treatment may only be accomplished by a
user if the user or the user’s contract service provider is permitted by the North
Carolina Division of Waste Management as a seplage management firm or service
provider.

ORC means the Operator in Responsible Charge of Lake Lure’s sewer system

pH means the logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight of hydrogen ions in grams
per liter of solution.

Public sewer means a sewer in which all owners of abutting properties have equal
rights, and which is controlled by public authority.

Refiactory, in reference to chemical wastewater constituents, means resistant to
treatment or difficult to degrade by biochemical processes.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 8

Sanitary sewer means a sewer which carries sewage and to which stormwater,
surface water and groundwater are not intentionally admitted.

Scavenger wastes means contents of privies, septic tanks or cesspools, industrial
wastes, chemical compounds and sludges which are hauled by truck or other mobile
conveyance.

Scheduling means designation of a specific time or time period during which a
sewer capacity allocation is available for use.

Service provider means any third party not in the employment of the user that
performs maintenance, repair, and other services on a user’s grease interceptor at
the user’s directive.

Sewage means a combination of the water-carried wastes from residences, business
buildings, institutions and industrial establishments, together with such
groundwater, surface water and stormwater as may be present.

Sewage treatment plant means any arrangement of devices and structures used for
treating sewage.

Sewer means a pipe or conduit for carrying sewage.

Sewer service line means the extension from a building drain to the public sewer or
other place of disposal; also, a lateral connection.

Sewerage system means all facilities for collecting, pumping, treating and disposing
of wastewater.

Siug means any discharge of water, sewage or industrial waste which, in
concentration of any given constituent, or in quantity of flow, exceeds for any
period of duration longer than 15 minutes more than five times the average 24-hour
concentration of flows during normal operation.

Storm drain and storm sewer mean a sewer which carries stormwater and surface
water and drainage, but excludes sewage and industrial wastes other than
unpolluted cooling water.

Surcharge means a monetary charge for treatment of industrial waste loads at
concentrations higher than normal for sanitary wastewaters. The term "hydraulic
surcharge of sewers," meaning overloading, is not used in this ordinance.



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 9

Suspended solids means solids that cither float on the surface of or are in
suspension in water, sewage or other liquids, and which are removable by
laboratory filtering.

System means the sewerage system of the town.

Tap means the connection made at the customer's service line (including meter or
cleanout) to a sewer main.

Town means the Town of Lake Lure, Rutherford County, North Carolina

User means any person using the services of the town for conveyance or treatment
of wastewater.

WWTP means the Town of Lake Lure Waste Water Treatment Plant

Wastewater means any waterborne suspension, slurry or solution of any materials in
water which serves the purpose of carrying away unwanted matetials from the
source.

Watercourse means a channel in which a flow of water occurs, either continuously
or intermittently.

51.04 Administrative procedures; enforcement; penalties; damaging or tampering
with facilities

e Duties and authority of Town code enforcement employees and inspectors.

¢ The Town Manager, his designees, and other duly authorized employees,
herein after referred to as inspectors, propetly identified by credentials of
appointment and identification shall perform code enforcement and/or
inspections. Inspection shall also be allowed by appropriate state and
federal agencies. It shall be the duty of the inspector to make inspections,
observations, measurements, sampling and testing in accordance with the
provisions of this ordinance. Such inspectors shall have no authority to
inquire into any industrial process or to require or request the disclosure of
any trade secrets beyond that point having a direct bearing on the kind or
source of discharge to the sewers or waterways or other facilities of the
Town.

e Such inspectors shall have the right to enter upon real property over and
through which the town has acquired an easement for the installation and
maintenance of the sewer lines and facilities, and, in addition, they shall
have, along with proper municipal inspectors, the right to go upon the
property of individuals or industrial users of the system as provided in the
utility service agreement mentioned in this ordinance, for the purpose of
determining compliance with the provisions of this ordinance. All non-




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 10

municipal sewer users shall execute, as a requirement for service, an
agreement allowing sewer inspectors to enter upon the premises for the
purpose of inspecting individual sewer collector lines, during reasonable
times, so as to verify compliance with the terms and conditions of such
service.

e While performing the necessary work on private properties referred to in
this section, any inspector shall observe all safety rules applicable to the
premises established by any commercial or industrial user.

Damaging or tampering with facilities. It shall be unlawful and a violation of
this ordinance for any person to damage, destroy or tamper with any gauges,
meters, lines, manholes and their covers, equipment, pumps, electrical
connections, lift stations, or any appurtenances to the sewer lines of the Town,
and, in addition to the civil responsibility for any damage caused or occasioned
by such person, such offender shall be liable for imposition of the penalties as
provided in this section. It shall likewise be a violation of this section for any
person to aid, assist, abet or permit a minor child to violate the provisions of this
ordinance, and such person shall be liable as a principal and subject to the
identical penalties as to which any violator of this ordinance would be liable.

Penalties. If any person shall violate the provisions of this chapter the Town
Manager, his designee or the code enforcement officer shall give notice to the
owner or to any person in possession of the subject property in writing and
served by personal delivery or the most expeditious means possible, directing
that all unlawful conditions existing thereupon be abated within ten days (10)
from the date of such notice; provided, that if, in the opinion of the Town
Manager, his designee, or the code enforcement officer the unlawful condition
is such that it is of imminent danger or peril to public, the public services
department may, without notice, proceed to abate the same, and the cost thereof
shall be charged against the property.

The penalty for the violation of any provisions of this ordinance shall be as
prescribed by (Town attorney to recommend a criminal penalty). In addition to
the criminal penalty there shall also be levied a civil penalty in the amount of
$200.00 per separate offense per day plus any amount Town Council shall find
appropriate in case of damage to the system or the environment for the purpose
of repairs or cleanup.

Additional rules and regulations. In order to carry out the terms of this
Ordinance, the Town may promulgate such rules and regulations as deemed
necessary, and the Town Manager is likewise vested, subject to ratification of
the Town Council, with authority to act on behalf of the Town in providing for
the safety, maintenance, good order and proper function of the facilities of the
Town.



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 11

51.05 Connection to sewer system required

o All Improved propetty within the town limits with a structure that generates
wastewater, and such structure is located within 200 feet of a town owned sewer
line, shall be connected therewith, and the property owner shall be charged the
prescribed connection fee for all such connections. Such connection shall be
made in accordance with the provisions of this section within 90 days after the
date of official notice to connect.

 Improved property served by wells and annexed by the town shall be connected
to the sewer systems, if within 200 feet, within two (2) years of the effective
date of annexation; provided, however, that no connection to the sewer system
shall be permitted without also connecting to the town’s water systen.

e The Manager or Town Council may delay or waive the requirement for
connection where a determination is made that it is impractical to connect due to
topography or other just causes. New construction shall be required to connect
to an existing sewer line prior to receiving a certificate of occupancy.

o Except as provided in this ordinance, it shall be unlawful to construct or
maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool or other facility intended
or used for the disposal of sewage.

51.06 Connections outside of Town Limits

o All improved property outside the town limits that request Town water service
and located within 200 feet of a town owned sewer line shall connect to the
town sewer. This shall be a condition to connect to Town water. The property
owner shall be charged the prescribed connection fee for ail such connections.
Such connection shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this section
within 90 days after the date of official notice to connect.

e Improved property served by wells, or other water source, outside town limits
may, at the discretion of the property owner, and upon approval of the ORC, be
connected to the Town sewer system. The property owner must provide written
documentation that there is legal access for the service line connecting the
improvement to the Town sewer.

51.07 Application for connection; service agreement/permit

o Application for connection to the Town sewer system shall be made on the
Town’s form, together with supporting reports and data sufficient to ensure
compliance with relevant terms of this ordinance. The minimum requirement
shall be that all information requested on the application be supplied, and all
irrelevant information blanks be marked as "not applicable." The Town




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 12

Manager, or his designee, may request any additional information deemed
necessary, within the scope and intent of this ordinance. Persons requiring
guidance in making application may consult the Town Manager. The approval
of a sewer connection application shall constitute the issuance of a service
agreement.

o An approvable service permit or information necessary (o support an approvable
application must be submitted to the Town Manager before approval will be
issued to any person proposing to discharge industrial wastewaters to public
SCWerS.

e Service permits shall specify quantities and characteristics of industrial
wastewaters which may be sewered and shall be limiting where so specified.
Service permits may specify special conditions and agreements between the
user and the Town. Service permits shall serve as a contract between the user
and the Town. If deviation from terms of a service permit is anticipated or
experienced by the user or the Town, each party shall immediately notify the
other, in writing, specifying the nature and extent of the change in sufficient
detail that a new or modified service permit may be issued, or the service permit
cancelled, whichever may be appropriate.

e Permits for any users, other than normal sanitary wastewater, shall be issued for
a specified time period not to exceed five years (5). The user shall apply for
permit reissuance a minimum of 180 days prior to expiration.

51.08 Connections to be made under town supervision

e All connections to the Town’s sewer main lines, or sewer manholes, shall be
performed only by a North Carolina Licensed Plumber or Licensed Utility
Contractor and/or performed by one of their employees under their direct
supervision.

e Sewer connections will not be made to any existing vacant substandard property
or any substandard property becoming vacant until such time as the property has
been inspected and brought into compliance with the town, county and State
codes and a certificate of occupancy issued.

e If an existing sewer connection to a property, that for one reason or another
‘becomes uninhabitable, the sewer service line will be cut and plugged at the
property line by the Town and billing stopped and the account will be closed. If
the uninhabitable property is brought into compliance with codes and a
certificate of occupancy is issued, then the sewer service line may be re-
cormected to the property, but will be considered as a new account, new tap and
an application with fees shall have to be completed and paid.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 13

No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connections with or opening
into, use, alter or disturb any public sewer, manhole or appurtenance.

All required permits (Town, County, State or Federal), contractor connection
costs and other expenses incidental to the installation and connection of a sewer
service line shall be borne by the owner. This may include costs for obtaining
road cut permits, road repair, easements, costs of inspection from third party
entitics, a pump and storage tank if required for the service connection and other
associated costs.

Unless otherwise authorized by the ORC, a separate and independent sewer
service line shall be provided for every building; except, where one building
stands at the rear of another on an interior lot and no private sewer is available
or can be constructed to the rear building through an adjoining alley, courtyard
or driveway. The sewer service line from the front building may be extended to
the rear building and the whole considered as one sewer service line.

Old sewer service lines may be used in connection with new buildings only
when they are found upon examination and fest by the ORC to meet all
requirements of this Ordinance.

The size, slope, alignment and materials of construction of a sewer service line,
and the methods to be used in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing
and backfilling the trench, shall all conform to the requirements of the state
building and plumbing codes or other applicable rules and regulations of the
town and the state. In the absence of code provisions or in amplification thereof,
the materials and procedures set forth in the town’s utility construction
standards shall apply.

Whenever possible, the sewer service line shall be brought to the building at an
clevation below the basement floor. In all buildings in which any building sewer
drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, sanitary sewage
carried by such building drain shall be pumped by an individual pump and
discharged to the sewer service line. In such case a pump is required; a shut off
valve shall be installed at the connection point to the town’s sewer. If a pump
and storage tank is required the system shall be pre-approved by the ORC.

No person shall make connection of roof downspouts, exterior foundation
drains, areaway drains or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a
sewer service line or building drain which in turn is connected directly or
indirectly to a public sanitary sewer.

The connection of the sewer service line into the public sewer shall conform to
the requirements of the building and plumbing code or other applicable rules
and regulations of the town and state. All such connections shall be made




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 14

watertight, Any deviation from the prescribed procedures and materials must be
approved by the Town Manager or ORC.

The applicant for a sewer connection shall notify the ORC or Customer Service
Representative prior to installation of the sewer service line to schedule a field
inspection and approval of the location of service line and connection point to
the town’s sewer. The actual connection to the town’s sewer shall be made
under the supervision of the ORC. No sewer setvice pipe or connection shall
be backfilled or covered up without prior inspection from the ORC or his
representatives. In a case where a state road has to be cut for installation of a
sewer service and connection to the town’s sewer, the NCDOT shall be notified
and perform an approved inspection.

All excavations for sewer service line installation shall be adequately guarded
with barricades and lights so as to protect the public from hazard. Streets,
sidewalks, parkways and other public property disturbed in the course of the
work shall be restored in a manner satisfactory to the town.

Tf the Town discovers through inspections and/or testing an unauthorized sewer
connection, the Town shall notify in writing the owner of the property that the
unauthorized connection serves and request the owner to complete a sewer
application form, pay a doubled connection fee and two (2) years of back
charges, or 100 % of back charges since the owner obtained title to the property
if less than two (2) years. Failure to complete an application may result in
further penalties in accordance with Section 51.04 of this ordinance.

51.09 User Charges

Generally. Sewer user charges are based upon the proposition that costs of
service be distributed equitably among users of the services. There will be two
rates for payment for services by users, as follows:

o Basic users rate, generally for all residential and commercial users

e High strength waste surcharges, usually for industrial and specialty users

Basic users rate.

o Water and sewer users. Persons discharging only domestic sanitary
wastewaters who are water customers of the town shall be charged such
rates as the Town Council shall determine through water meter records.
Such rates shall be stated in terms of dollars per 1,000 gallons of
wastewater and shall include any charge which the town needs make to
cover the costs of operations, maintenance and capital improvements.
Such rates shall be set forth in the Schedule of Fees and Charges of the
annually adopted Budget Ordinance for the Town of Lake Lure and on file
with the Customer Service Representative. The specific policies and




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 15

procedures for the collection of water and sewer charges shall be
established by the Town Manager.

Sewer (no water meler). Persons discharging only domestic sanitary
wastewater who are not water customers of the town will be charged a flat
fee. Such flat fee will be based upon averages of water metered
customers. Such rates shall be set forth in the Schedule of Fees and
Charges of the annually adopted Budget Ordinance for the Town of Lake
Lure.

o Adjustments. Normally all requests for sewer flat fee rate adjustment will

not be considered. An appeal may be considered if it can be demonstrated
{hat the flat fee is substantially different from the proposition that costs of
service be distributed equitably among users of the services. The Town
manager is authorized to make an adjustment in the flat fee rate.

o High strength waste surcharge.

s Persons discharging high strength wastes, normally industrial, will be

charged for loads of BOD and suspended solids in the wastewater in
concentrations in excess of those normal for domestic sanitary sewage and
allowed for in the basic users rate. For purposes of establishing the lower
limits of the user charge surcharges, normal domestic wastewater shall be
characterized according to the following concentrations for domestic
waste parameicrs:

e BODs: 220 mg/l.

o Suspended solids: 220 mg/l.
Surcharge rates will be stated in terms of dollars per pound for each
parameter. Quantities of surchargeable materials will be determined by
flow measurements (or estimates), sampling, analyses and calculations.
Sampling and analyses will be done by the town using 24-hour composite
samples, taken during a representative operating day of the user. The
minimum sampling frequency will be one day for each four-month billing
period. Wastewater analyses will be performed according to procedures of
the latest edition of Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and
Wastewater, APHA, AWWA, WPCF. Average results of sample analyses
will be used for calculating surcharges for each parameter over the billing
period according to the following example calculation:
Assume Average Measured BOD = 600 mg/l = (600 ib./10° 1b. WW)
Assumed Measured Volume = 900,000 gal /quarter
Limit of Base Rate BOD 220 mg/l = (220 lb./ 10% 1b. WW)
Assume BOD Surcharge = ¢/Ib.
BOD Surcharge = 600-200 x 0.9 x 8.34 x ¢/1b.
10° x 100 = $/quarter
Administration for the high strength waste monitoring program and
billings to such accounts will be made by the town and will include
statements of base rate billings, surcharge billings and the basis of billings.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 16

e The town will enier into agreement with high strength users specifying
alternate methods of sewage flow determination and sampling as
conditions of a service permit.

e If required, a schedule of surcharge rates to be charged for the collection
and treatment of high strength wastewater shall be set forth in the
Schedule of Fees and Charges. Rate schedules will be revised from time to
time to reflect the changing number of users and the varying operation
costs.

e The Town may negotiate a separate rate agreement for high volume and/or
high strength users

51.10 Deposits

Customer deposits shall not be required for sewer service apart from deposits
required for the town's water system. The customer deposits are set forth in the
Schedule of Fees and Charges of the annually adopted Budget Ordinance for the
Town of Lake Lure.

51.11 Sewer connection charges

o Applicable sewer connection and capital impact fees shall be paid in advance of
the establishment of any sewer connection, including but not limited to the
extension of pipe, the tapping of a sewer main, or the establishment of a new
use on an existing connection. The specific policies and procedures for the
assessment and collection of sewer connection and capital impact fees shall be
established by the Schedule of Fees and Charges in each year’s annual budget
ordinance.

e No water from the town's water system shall be supplied to any person who has
caused a sewer tap to be made until the connection fee has been received by the
Town.

e All residents of areas statutorily annexed to the town, where the town extends
the sewer to the newly annexed area, shall qualify for waiver of the standard
sewer connection fees and charges provided such residents follow proper
application, installation and complete connections within 12 calendar months of
ihe date sewer utilities are available for tapping. The Town Manager shall
provide written certification to Town Council of the date such utility lines
become available for connection, thereby, fixing the date from which residents
are allowed to connect without payment of connection charges. All residents
who do not connect within the 12-month waiver period must pay all connection
fees and charges as prescribed herein.

e Sewer connection and impact fees arc intended to fund the town's capital
reserve fund. The purpose of the impact fee is: to reimburse existing customers




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 17

for having to finance expansion-related projects in advance of growth; recovers
carrying costs of capacity because capacity must be developed in advance of
growth; and creates a fund for the upgrading of the sewer collection and
treatment system required due to obsolescence or increased regulatory
requirements.

For purpose of assessing residential sewer capital impact fees, the assumed
usage for a residential unit shall be 375 gallons per day. The term "residential
unit" shall be deemed to be an individual single family living unit whether such
unit shall be a freestanding house, an apartment, a condominium or any other
residential structure.

Non-residential users will be assessed sewer capital impact fees based on the
number of 375 GPD units of water consumed and will pay the full cost for any
fraction of a residential equivalent. Sewer capital impact fees may be assessed
utilizing the best available information, including but not limited to historical
use data for similar uses, and an Engineer's signed and sealed estimate of
projected water use. In the absence of such information, the Town Manager
shall base sewer capital impact such fees upon North Carolina Administrative
Code 15A NCAC 02T.0114 Wastewater Design Flow Rates.

51.12 Consumption and Flat Fee basis of charges

All charges for wastewater collected from any customer and discharged to the town
sewer system shall be based upon the number of gallons per month delivered by the
customer at the point of connection to the town system. The number of gallons
collected shall be determined by the readings of the customer's water meter. If the
customer has sewer service only a flat fee will be charged as set forth in Section
51.09 (b).

51.13 Responsibility for payment of charges

The Town bills bi-monthly for sewer service to the address set forth on the
application for service. The person who signs the application for service is
responsible for paying the bi-monthly bills in accordance with the schedule of
cates and fees. Should bills not be paid, the charges for services remain with the
property. If the property’s title is transferred, through a sale, foreclosure,
bankruptey, inheritance, or other means; responsibility for unpaid balances for
service transfer to the new title owner(s). (Attorney to review this policy)

Where there is not provided a separate service connection for each building
situated on any given lot or parcel of land, the owner of such lot or parcel of
land shall be responsible for the payment of charges for sewer to all such
buildings on the lot or parcel.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 18

Where separate service connections are not provided to every occupancy unit or
tenant within a multitenant building, the owner of the building shall be
responsible for the payment of all charges for sewer service to the building.

Where more than one dwelling unit, or separate structures arc provided service
through a single service connection, the charges for service shall be the total
number of dwelling units or structures served times the minimum charge as
shown in the current sewer rate plus the total volume rate. The number of
minimum charges is defined as the same number of separate electrical meters
required to serve the dwelling units or structures.

51.14 Suspension of service

The Town reserves the right to suspend service, with notice, for non-payment of
bills. Notices and suspension of service shall be in accordance with the Town
Manager’s directives.

When it is not practical to disconnect sewer service for non-payment; i.e.,
several customers share a private sewer lateral that connects to the Town’s
system and one of those customers does not pay their bill, service cannot be
terminated to all customers due to one customer’s delinquent actions. In these
and similar cases, the Town will allow the delinquent account to accumulate to
a balance of approximately $1,000, and then proceed with legal liens on the
property and small claims court to secure a judgment. Costs associated with
liens and small claims court, and all delinquent service fees will be added fo the
judgment claim.

The Town reserves the right to suspend service, without notice, for the
following conditions:
s To prevent fraud or abuse

o Customer’s willful disregard of the Town’s rules and regulations
¢ Emergency repairs
e Legal process
o Strike, riot, fire, flood, accident or any unavoidable cause
. Permissive use of system

Customers in or outside town limits are subject to regulations of the Town, the
County Department of Health, and the State Department of Environmental and
Natural Resources (DENR) for proper handling of wastes and wastewaters
accepted into the public sewers.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 19

e  Such customers may apply to the town for discharge of sanitary and compatible
wastewaters into the sewerage system, by procedures outlined in this ordinance

Prohibited discharges

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any incompatible wastewaters
or wastes to any public sewers, including the following:

e The discharge of sanitary wastewater into a storm sewer system. This is
prohibited without exception.

e Stormwater, surface water, groundwater, roof runoff, subsurface drainage,
uncontaminated cooling water or unpolluted industrial process waters to any
sanitary sewer. Unpolluted cooling waters may, upon written application
and approval by the Town Managet, be discharged to storm
sewers or storm drains.

e Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to treatment or
removal by the waste treatment processes employed or are amenable to
treatment only to such degree that the waste treatment plant effluent and
residuals outputs cannot meet the requirements of the NCDENR permits
applicable to plant operations.

¢ Any waters or wastes containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids or gases in
sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with other wastes, to injure or
interfere with any sewage treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or
animals, or create a public nuisance.

e Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive
liguids, solid or gas.

e Any waters or wastes having a pH lower than 5.0, or having any other corrosive
property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures, equipment and
personnel of the WWTP.

e Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of causing
obstruction to the flow in sewers or other interference with the proper operation
of the WWTP, such as but not limited to ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw,
shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastic, wood, un-ground garbage,
whole blood, paunch manure, hair and fleshings, entrails and paper dishes, cups,
milk containers, etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders.

Restricted discharges




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 20

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged the following described
prohibited substances, materials, waters or wastes if it appears likely in the
opinion of the Town Manager that such wastes can harm either the sewers,
sewage treatment process or equipment, can have an adverse effect on the
receiving stream, or can otherwise endanger life, limb, public property or
constitute a nuisance. In forming his opinion as to the acceptability of these
wastes, the Manager will give consideration to such factors as quantities of
subject wastes in relation to flows and velocities in the sewers, materials of
construction of the sewers, nature of the sewage treatment process, capital of the
sewage treatment plant, degree of treatability of wastes in the sewage treatment
plant, and other pertinent factors. The substances prohibited are:

e Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than 104 degrees
Fahrenheit (40 degrees Celsius).

e Any waste or water containing fafs, wax, grease or oil in excess of 100
mg/l (per NCDENR), as determined by results of the Freon exiractable
test, and the reasonable interpretation of test results, and/or auxiliary tests,
to exclude from the measurement values which do not represent fats, wax,
grease and oil.

e Any garbage other than ground residential garbage from residential
kitchen sinks.

« Any acidic or alkaline wastewaters having pH values outside the range of
5.0 to 10.0.

e Heavy metals and toxic, refractory or organic chemicals in concentrations
or quantities sufficient to limit treatment plant capability or efficiency, to
adversely affect effluent quality by their presence or effects, or to limit the
means of disposal or utilization of treatment plant sludge by their
presence. The manager may issue lists of prohibited metals and toxic
chemicals and guidelines and criteria for limiting their acceptance as
required for operation of the treatment system.

e Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as
may exceed public safety limits or cause the plant effluent or sludge to
exceed any applicable state or federal regulations.

¢ Any materials which exert or cause:

e Unusual oxygen demand or chlorine demand in such amounts as to
constitute a significant load or an operating problem.

o Excessive discoloration of treatment plant effluent.

e Unusual odors in the treatment plant effluent or unusual odors in
the sewerage system.

51.18 Fat, Oil and Grease — (FOG)

Scope and purpose. The objective of this section is to aid in preventing the
-niroduction and accumulation of fats, oils, and greases into the municipal
wastewater system which will or tend to cause or contribute to sanitary sewer




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 21

blockages and obstructions, Food Service Establishments and other industrial
or commercial establishments generating wastewater containing fats, oils or
greases are subject to this section. This section regulates such users by
requiring that grease interceptors and other approved strategies be installed,
implemented, and maintained in accordance with the provisions hereof.

Definitions. See Section 51.03

Grease interceptor installation, maintenance, recordkeeping, and grease
removal.

Grease interceptors shall be installed and maintained at the user’s expense,
when a User operates a food service establishment. Grease interceptors
may be required in non-cooking or cold dairy and frozen foodstuffs
establishments and other industrial or commercial establishments when the
establishment generates wastewater containing fat or grease and the ORC
determines an interceptor is necessary to prevent contribution or
accumulation of grease to the sanitary sewer collection and treatment
system. Upon notification by the ORC or designee that the user is subject
to the terms of an enforcement action, said user shall not allow wastewater
discharge concentration from subject greasc interceptor to exceed an
establishment action level of 100 milligrams per liter, expressed as
Hexane Extractable Material. All grease interceptors shall be of a type,
design, and capital approved by the ORC and shall be readily and easily
accessible for maintenance, and repair, including cleaning and for town
inspection.  All grease interceptors shall be serviced and emptied of
accumulated waste content as required in order to maintain minimum
design capability or effective volume of the grease interceptor, but not less
often than every sixty (60) days or as permitied in a valid program
modification, Users who are required to pass wastewater through a grease
interceptor shall:

e Provide a minimum hydraulic retention time of 24 minutes at
actual peak flow between the influent and effluent baffles, with
twenty-five percent (25%) of the total volume of the grease
interceptor being allowed for any food-derived solids to settle or
accumulate and floatable grease derived material to rise and
accumulate, identified hereafter as a solids blanket and grease cap
respectively.”

s Remove any accumulated grease cap and solids blanket as
required, but at intervals of not longer than sixty (60) days at the
user’s expense, or in accordance with the wvalid program
modification or other ORC’s requirements. Grease interceptors
shall be kept free of inorganic solid materials, such as grit, rocks,
gravel, sand, eating utensils, cigarettes, shells, towels, rags, etc.,
which could settle into this solids blanket and thereby reduce the
effective volume of the grease interceptor.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 22

o If the user performs onsite grease interceptor treatment pursuant to
a modification granted below, user shall:

e Prior to commencement of Onsite Treatment obtain written
approval by and from the ORC of all processes utilized in
said onsite {reatment.

o If any pumped wastes or other materials removed from the
grease interceptor are treated in any fashion onsite
and reintroduced back into the grease interceptor as an
activity of and after such onsite treatment, the user shall
meet the criteria contained in (c)(1)(c)(3) below.

e Attain and adhere to the criteria listed below:

a.

After 30 minutes of setting time, not more than 3.0
ml/L of settlable solids, as measured in a 1 liter
Imhoff cone shall be allowed.

Within and not more than 24 hours after onsite grease
interceptor servicing, not more the 2 (inches) of
setiable solids and/or grease shall be allowed to have
accumulated therein as a result of said operations.
Service vehicles and equipment used in onsite Grease
interceptor servicing shall be registered with the
Public Works and Utilities Department, and as
required by the North Carolina Division of Waste
Management.

When servicing grease interceptors service vehicles
and equipment shall have onboard, at all times, a
certificate of approval for the operations and methods
used, issued by the ORC.

Any tanks, tankage, or vessel(s) associated with a
modification shall be empty upon arrival at the initial
FSE user site for which this modification is intended
to be applied.

d) Operate and maintain the grease interceptor to achieve and consistently
maintain any applicable grease action level. “Consistent” shall mean any
wastewater sample taken from such grease interceptor must meet the terms of
numerical limit attainment described in subsection (C) (1). If a user documents
that conditions exist (“space constraints™) on their establishment site that limit
the ability to locate a grease interceptor on the exterior of the establishment, the
user may request an interior location for the interceptor. Such request shall
contain the following information:

e Location of town sewer main and easement in relation to available exterior
space outside building.

o Existing plumbing layout at or in a site.

e A statement of understanding, signed by the user or authorized agent,
acknowledging and accepting conditions the ORC may place on




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 23

e)

)

permitting an identified interior focation. Conditions may include
requirements to use alternative mechanisms, devices, procedures, or
operations relative to an interior location.

¢ Such other information as may be required by the ORC.

The use of biological or other additives as a grease degradation or conditioning
agent is permissible only upon prior written approval of the ORC. Any user
using biological or other additives shall maintain the trap or interceptor in such
a manner that attainment of any grease wastewater, action level, solids blanket
or grease cap criteria, goal or directive, as measured from the grease interceptor
outlet of interior, is consistently achieved.

The use of automatic grease removal systems is permissible only upon prior
written approval of the ORC, the lead plumbing inspector of Rutherford County,
and the Rutherford Polk McDowell District Health Department or the US
Department of Agriculture. Any user using a grease interceptor located in the
interior of the site shall be subject to any operational requirements set forth by
the North Carolina Division of Waste Management. Any user using equipment
shall operate the system in such a manver that attainment of the grease
wastewater discharge limit as measured from the unit’s outlet, is consistently
achieved as required by the ORC.

The ORC may make determinations of grease interceptor adequacy need,
design, appropriateness, application, location, modification(s), and conditional
usage based on review of all relevant information regarding grease inferceptor
performance, facility site and building plan review by all regulatory reviewing
agencies may require repairs to, or modification or replacement of grease
interceptors.

1. The user shall maintain a written record of grease interceptor maintenance
for three years. All such records will be available for inspection by the
town at all times. These records shall include:

FSE name and physical location

Date of grease interceptor service

Time of grease interceptor service

Name of grease interceptor service company

Name and signature of grease interceptor service company agent

petforming said service

¢ Established service frequency and type of service: full pump-out,
partial pump-out, onsite treatment (type of nature of operations)

e Number and size of each grease interceptor serviced at FSE
location

o Approximated amount, per best professional judgment of contract
service provider, of grease and solids removed from cach grease
interceptor

e & & &




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 24

e Total volume of waste removed from each grease interceptor

e Destination of removed wastes, food solids, and wastewater
disposal

o Signature and date of FSE personnel confirming service
completion

¢ Such other information as required by ORC

e No non-grease-laden sources are allowed to be connected to sewer lines
intended for grease interceptor service.

o Access manholes shall have an installed diameter of 24 inches, a
maximum weight of 50 pounds, and shall be provided over each chamber,
interior baffle wall, and ecach sanitary tee. The access penetrations,
commonly referred to as “risers” into the grease interceptor shall also be,
at a minimum, 24 inches in diameter. The access manholes shall extend at
Jeast to finished grade and be designed and maintained to prevent water
inflow or infiltration. The manholes shall also have readily removable
covers to facilitate inspection, grease removal, and wastewater sampling
activities.

e A user may request a modification to the following requirements of this
ordinance. Such request for a modification shall be n writing and shall
provide the information set forth below.

e The user’s grease interceptor pumping frequency The ORC may
modify the sixty (60) days grease interceptor pump out frequency
when the user provides data, and performance criteria relative to
the overall effectiveness of a proposed alternate and such can be
substantiated by the ORC. Proposed alternatives may include:
grease  interceptor pumping or maintenance  matters,
bioremediation as a complement to grease interceptor maintenance,
grease interceptor selection and sizing criteria, onsite grease
interceptor maintenance, and specialized ware washing procedures.

e Grease interceptor maintenance and service procedures. The ORC
may modify the method(s) or procedure(s) utilized service a grease
interceptor when the user provides data, and performance criteria
relative to the overall effectiveness of a proposed alternate method
or procedurc and such can be substantiated by the ORC. If a
modification to maintenance and service procedures is permitted it
shall be a conditional discharged permit approval.

e Any modification must be approved by the ORC in written form
before implementation by the user or the user’s designated service
provider.

51.19 Limitations on compatible wastes

e No person may discharge large quantities of compatible wastewaters to public
sewers which, by reason of volume, flow rate, concentration or total load of




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 25

compatible constituents, are in excess of the capital of a part of the sewerage
system or are inconsistent with the most beneficial use of the system in the
opinion of the manager. In consideration of these factors, the Town Manager
will limit the following:

o Volume and flow rate from any individual source to the capital of sewers,
pump stations and force mains and the treatment system, less the capital
committed to serve the general public and other users and the reserve
capital to serve anticipaied needs of the general public until the time of a
planned expansion of the facilities.

e Loads of compatible pollutants, such as BOD, suspended solids, nitrogen
and phosphorus, from any individual source, to the capital of the treatment
facilities, less the capital committed to serve the general public and other
users and the reserve capital to serve the anticipated needs of the general
public until the time of a planned expansion of the treatment facilities.

e The Town Manager may require flow equalization or pretreatment for load
reduction as a condition of a service permit or may decline to receive high
loads or highly concentrated wastewaters into the system if in the Town
Manager’s opinion this would not be the most beneficial use of the
system, by reason of the cost of services, technical considerations relating
to operation and maintenance of the system or conflicting alternatives for
the provision of services.

51.20 Compliance with Federal and state standards

Applicability of federal pretreatment standards. Upon the promulgation of the
federal categorical pretreatment standards for a particular industrial
subcategory, the federal standard, if more stringent than limitations imposed
under this ordinance for sources in that subcategory, shall immediately
supersede the limitations imposed under this ordinance.

Modification of federal pretreatment standards. Where the town's WWTP
achieves consistent removal of pollutants limited by federal pretreatment
standards, the town may apply to the approval authority for modification of
specific limits in the federal pretreatment standards. For purposes of this
section, consistent removal shall mean reduction in the amount of a pollutant or
alteration of the nature of the pollutant by the wastewater treatment system to a
Jess toxic or harmless state in the effluent which is achieved by the system in 95
percent of the samples taken when measured according to the procedures set
forth in 40 CFR 403, "General Pretreatment Regulations for Existing and New
Sources of Poltution," section 403.7(c)(2), promulgated pursuant to the act. The
town may then modify pollutant discharge limits in the federal pretreatment
standards if the requirements contained in 40 CFR, part 403, section 403.7, are
fulfilled and prior approval from the approval authority is obtained.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 26

Applicability of state requirements. State requirements and limitations on
discharges shall apply in any case where they are more stringent than federal
requirements and limitations or those in this ordinance.

Dilution of discharge. No user shall ever increase the use of process water or in
any way attempt to dilute a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for
adequate treatment to achieve compliance with the Jimitations contained in the
federal categorical prefreatment standards, or in any other pollutant-specific
limitation improved by the town or the state.

51.21 Accidental Discharges

Facilities and procedures. Bach user shall provide protection from accidental
discharge of prohibited materials or other substances regulated by this
ordinance. Facilities to prevent accidental discharge of prohibited materials
shall be provided and mainiained at the owner's or uset's own cost and expense.
Detailed plans showing facilities and operating procedures 0 provide this
protection shall be submitted to the town for review, and shall be approved by
the town before construction of the facility. All existing users, if applicable,
shall complete such a plan within 180 days of adoption of this ordinance. No
user who commences contribution to the system after effective date of this
ordinance shall be permitted to introduce pollutants into the system until
accidental discharge procedures have been approved by the town. Review and
approval of such plans and operating procedures shall not relieve the industrial
user from the responsibility to modify the user's facility as necessary to meet the
requirements of this ordinance. In the case of accidental discharge, it is the
responsibility of the user to immediately telephone and notily the treatment
plant of the incident. The notification shall include location of discharge, type of
waste, conceniration and volume, and corrective actions.

Written notice to manager. Within five days following an accidental discharge,
the user shall submit to the manager a detailed written report describing the
cause of the discharge and the measures 10 be taken by the user to prevent
similar future occurrences. Such notification shall not relieve the user of any
expense, Joss, damage or other liability which may be incurred as a result of
damage to the system, fish kills or any other damage to person or propetty; nor
shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, civil penalties or other
Jiability which may be imposed by this ordinance or other applicable law.

Notice lo employees. A potice shall be permanently posted on the user's bulletin
board or other prominent place advising employees whom to call in the event of
an accidental or dangerous discharge. Employers shall ensure that all employees
who may cause or suffer such a dangerous discharge to occur are advised of the
emergency notification procedure.



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 27

51.22 Wastewater monitoring facilities

All persons discharging or proposing to discharge industrial wastewaters to the
public sewer shall provide facilities for access to the sewer service line carrying
industrial wastewater for the purposes of flow measurement and sampling by the
town, as required by the town manager. A person discharging industrial wastes shall
install a suitable control manhole, together with such necessary meters and other
appurtenances, in the sewer service line to facilitate observation, sampling and
measurements of the wastes. Such manhole, when required, shall be accessibly and
safely located, and shall be constructed in accordance with plans approved by the
town manager, The manhole shall be installed by the owner at his expense, and
shall be maintained by the owner so as to be safe and accessible at all times.

51.23 Wastewater pretreatment facilities

e Persons desiring to discharge to the public sewer industrial wastewaters which
are incompatible with the system shall construct and operate pretreatment
facilitics to bring the wastewater to a condition and quality which is compatible
with the sewerage system prior fo discharge to the sewer. Facilities such as
grease and oil interceptors, grit traps, and flow equalization basins and controls
shall be considered pretreatment facilities, as well as all other facilities
designated to eliminate incompatible characteristics and/or reduce wastewater
loads of compatible characteristics.

e The user shall obtain approval from the manager of the plans and specifications
for the pretreatment facilities prior to construction of pretreatment facilities,
shall construct such facilities at his expense, and shall operate and maintain such
facilities to meet conditions of his approved sewer connection service permit.

51.24 Acceptance of septage from private, corporate, and HOA systems

The Town does not own, or have access to, facilities for pre-treatment of scavenger
wastes (AKA Septage). Theses wastes from private, corporate wastewater
companies, an HOA, or any other source and hauler shall not be accepted for
disposal into the town's system. Any discharge of such wastewater, or scavenger
wastes as defined by this ordinance, into the town's system shall constitute a
violation of this ordinance and be subject to such penalties as described in this
ordinance.

51.25 Private sewage disposal systems

e When vacant property is to be improved, or existing improvements upgraded,
and sewer service is required, and a Town sanitary sewer is not available, the
sewer service line shall be connected to a private sewage disposal system
complying with the regulations of the state and county,




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 28

At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a
private sewage disposal system, as provided in section 51.05, a direct

connection shall be made to the public sewer in compliance with this ordinance
at the time of the first malfunction of the private system; and any septic tanks,
cesspools and similar private sewage disposal facilities shall be abandoned and

filled with suitable material.

The owner shall operate and maintain the private sewage disposal facilities in a

sanitary manner at all times, at no expense to the town.

. Sewer Capacity and Allocation

Background

The Town of Lake Lure owns and operates a wastewater collection system
and a treatment plant. The town desires to ensure that any available
wastewater treatment capacity is allocated and utilized in a manner that best
serves the interests of the citizens of Lake Lure. Thus when new residential,
commercial or industrial planned developments are submitted to the Town’s
planning department and a sewer extension is required, a sewer allocation
shall have to be obtained as part of the development approval process. Infill
residential improvements located where sewer is available are exempt from
obtaining a sewer allocation. The form for requesting a sewer allocation, is
the NCDENR Flow Tracking/Acceptance for Sewer Extension Applications,
(F'TSE 08-13) is available on the NCDENR website.

Purpose

This Sewer Capacity Allocation Policy is designed to utilize a valuable and

limited resource to achieve the following:

s DProtection of public health, elimination of failing septic tanks, and
protection of the environment

e To encourage the development and availability of essential and desirable
community services;

e To promote the financial health and stability of the town government;

e To insure the orderly growth and development of the community;

e To encourage high quality, attractive development

e To avoid committing large amounts of allocation to projects which are
phased over several years or which will not likely result in utilization of
services in a timely manner.

Evaluation Criteria
Requests for the allocation of sewer capacity shall be evaluated on the
following criteria (in descending order of preference):
o Location of the project within the Town's corporate boundaries.
s Location of the project near the lake or other water source.



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 29

The project's provision of critical, essential, or highly desirable
community services. _

A high ratio of added property tax base in relation to the estimated cost of
town services.

Significant generation of other, additional revenues to help support town
services.

Location of the project on a site that promotes needed infill, compact
growth of the town boundaries, and efficient, cost-effective provision of
municipal services.

Consistency with and/or advancement of the Town's Comprehensive
Plan.

The provision of desirable, high-quality community amenities.

The provision of desirable public facilities, easements, or rights-of-way.
Agreement to develop the property in a specific fashion that exhibits high
quality site, building, and landscaping design.

Preservation of key resources or structures that are part of the unique
character of the town.

Preservation and/or protection of natural resources, such as water quality
or vegetation.

Evidence of the project's ability to utilize the requested allocation in an
expeditious manner.

Mitigation of significant, identified public health or environmental
problems.

A demonstrated history of high quality development by the owner or
developer.

A demonstrated history of expeditious project completion by the owner or
developer.

Willingness to furnish performance bonds or other substantial guarantees
of any

promises and commitments contained in the application.

The availability of and/or investment in significant infrastructure required
to support building, occupancy, and use. (To be considered, any
investments must be pursuant to approval of required plans and permits by
the Town or other appropriate agency.)

e Applications

1.

General. All applicants are encouraged to carefully review the criteria set
forth in this policy and the application requirements before submitting an
application.

Form. The owner of any project or property who desires to apply for an
allocation of sewer capacity shall submit a written application, in the form:
NCDENR Flow Tracking/Acceptance for Sewer Extension Applications,
(FTSE 08-13), (is available on the NCDENR website), which provides key
ownership, property, and project information, which indicates the amount



Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 30

3.

4.

of capacity being requested, which sets forth the proposed timetable for
the project, and which provides sufficient factual information to address
the evaluation criteria set forth in this policy. All applications and any
approvals shall be subject to the standard terms and conditions set forth in
this policy. No letters or other communications may be substituted tfor
submission of a proper and complete application.
Fees. Sewer allocation applications shall be accompanied by non-
refundable allocation fees, based on a schedule of fees set by the Town
Council from time to time.
Review. Applications will be reviewed and evaluated by the Town staff to
insure completeness of needed information and to determine the extent to
which the application addresses the evaluation criteria.
Approval or Denial. After required application information and the initial
evaluation are complete, applications shall be considered for approval or
denial as follows:
a. Town Council Reviews., The Town Council shall review and make
decisions on all applications with the following characteristics:
(1) Projects which require or may require a daily flow allocation of
over 1,000 gallons (2) Projects located outside the corporate
boundaries of the Town; (3) Projects that are subject to special
zoning or development review requirements, such as conditional
uses, planned unit developments, or projects located in overlay or
conditional zones.

b. Management Reviews. The Town Manager may review and make
decisions on applications located within the corporate boundaries
of the Town that require a daily flow allocation of 1,000 gallons or
less. In considering such minor applications, the Town Manager
shall keep in view the evaluation criteria set forth in this policy,
but such minor allocations may not be required to have evaluation
ratings as high as major projects. Denials of minor applications
may be appealed, as a new application, to the Town Council.

6. Re-Application. Applications which are denied may not normally be re-

submitted for at least 90 days and should submit evidence of significant
changes in their applications that may justify reconsideration.

¢ Terms and Conditions

All approvals of sewer capacity allocation shall be subject to the following
conditions and any other conditions set forth in the action of approval.

L.

Form of Approval. Any approved allocations shall be issued in writing and
shall be subject to all of the terms, conditions, and provisions of this
policy, as well as any specific conditions related to project that are
stipulated by the Town Council. Such conditions may include
requirements for expeditious completion of projects or other requirements
which, if not fulfilled, will cause the allocation to become null and void.




Ordinance No. 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 31

Annexation. All approvals of sewer capacity allocations for properties
outside of town limits will be conditioned upon submission of an
nrevocable petition for voluntary annexation.

. Nature of Allocations. Approved allocations of sewer capacity are

conditional distributions based on estimated or expected plant capacity,
but are not unconditional guarantees or rights to service capacity. All
allocations made by the Town are contingent on the actual availability of
capacily at the time of property improvement and connection. All rights to
sewer capacity subject to distribution by the Town shall remain at all times
the property of the Town, and no person shall acquire any interest in
property as a result of a sewer capacity allocation. The Town may, in
some circumstances, elect to appiove allocations that are explicitly
contingent upon the availability of future capacity, the expiration, lapse, or
release of existing allocations, and/or the occurrence of other events.

Order of Service. If limited actual capacity is available at the time of
proposed connection, the approval of actual connections, among those
owners or projects with approved allotments, shall be on a first-come,
first-served basis.

Expeditious Completion. In order to insure that other potentially
worthwhile projects are not unrcasonably prevented from obtaining
allocations of this scarce resource, allocations will be made with the
expectation that capacity will be utilized in a timely manner. All approved
allocations require vigorous and expeditious prosecution of the proposed
project. Allocations may not be "banked" for use beyond the duration of
the allocation.

. Partial or Limited Allocations. In considering applications for multi-unit

projects or developments, sewer allocations may be limited to and made
for a portion of the total amount requested, in order (a) to encourage
expeditious utilization of allocated capacity; (b) to encourage
demonstration of project completion ability, and (¢} to protect available
capacity against over-allocation and non-utilization.

Scheduled Availability. Sewer allocations may also be made on a
scheduled basis, in which the availability of capacity--especially in
projects with multiple units or phases-- is scheduled for specific dates or
periods of time. Allocations that are not accompanied by scheduling shall
be for a specific period of time (see "Duration” below) beginning at the
date of approval.

Other Permits and Approvals. Approval of a sewer capacity allocation
does not confer or imply any other approvals required by the Town,
County, State, or other agencies (such as the Health Department or North
Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources). The Town
of Lake Lure shall bear no cost, liability, or responsibility if other needed
approvals for a project are denied or withheld.

. Vested Rights. The approval of a sewer capacity allocation is, as indicated

herein, conditional and does not imply or create a vested right. All



Ordinance No, 14-09-09
September 9, 2014

Page 32

10.

11.

12.

13,

14.

15.

applications for sewer capacity allocations shall be based on this
understanding and condition, and all applicants shall agree that no claim of
a vested right, guarantee, or property interest may be made based on any
allocation of sewer capacity.

Agreements. Any specific promises or commitments made by the
applicant and considered in the evaluation process shall be set forth, if an
allocation 1s approved, in specific agreements between the Town and the
applicant.

Transferability. Applications are evaluated based on information and
commitments provided by a specific applicant with regard to a specific
property and project. Approved allocations of sewer capacity may not be
transferred by the applicant to any other person, owner, entity,
organization, corporation, property, project, or location. Allocations are
valid only for the named applicant and project. If the recipient of an
approved allocation desires to request transfer of an approved allocation to
any other person or entity, an updated application must be presented for
evaluation and consideration by the same reviewer (Town Council or
Town Manager) that conducted the original review. In a residential
subdivision, sale of individual lots to an individual builder or owner for
the purpose of construction of homes is not considered a transfer---up to a
maximum of five lots--but any associated capacity allocation remains
subject to the duration and conditions of the original allocation.

Changes in Use, Design, or Location. Allocations are limited to the project
use, design, and location described in an approved allocation. Proposed
changes in use, design, or location require submission of and evaluation of
a new application.

Duration and FExpiration. All approved allocations shall be for a period of
24 months from the date of approval (unless availability is scheduled for a
specific date or period of time in the future.) After the standard allocation
duration or other time period specified in the approval, the allocation will
expire (unless extended) and the allocation will be subject to re-allocation.
Extensions. Updated applications are required to consider any extensions
of allocations, and requests for extensions will be based on updated
conditions at the time of the request. All requests for extensions shall be
based on substantial justification of the need for the extension and a
substantial explanation of the applicant's failure to complete the project in
an expeditious manner. The reviewer (Town Council or Town
Administrator) may, if such extensions are approved, make approvals
conditional on terms or conditions different from those in the original
approval. Extensions, if approved, shall normally be for a period of six
months only.

Capacity Accounting. Calculation of availability of sewage treatment
capacity is, by its nature, an inexact science, due to the dynamic nature of
wastewater flow and treatment, weather, seasonal use, the regulatory
environment, and other factors. The Town will make its best efforts to




Ordinance No, 14-09-09
September 9, 2014
Page 33

track the amount of capacity that may be available for allocation, but any
calculations or reports shall not be construed as a policy statement,
commitment, or guarantee of the amount of capacity available for
allocation.

16. Actions Adversely Affecting Capacity. Any allocation approvals are
subject to potential actions of legislative bodies or regulatory agencies that
may affect the actual availability of capacity. Wastewater treatment
capacity may also be adversely affected by operational practices, severe
storms, other acts or God, and acts of intentional or unintentional damage
to facilities. The Town assumes no responsibility for actions or events
beyond its control that have an adverse effect on actual treatment capacity.

17. Cancellation. Failure to comply with the specific terms and conditions of
any allocation and/or of this policy shall render an allocation null and
void.

e Previous Allocations

In consideration of any requested extensions, if is the intent of the Town to
give priority to projects or portions of projects for which infrastructure
installations are complete at the time of allocation expiration. Portions of
planned projects for which infrastructure is not complete will be fully subject
to the terms, conditions, and criteria of this policy and may, if re-approved, be
subject to (a) scheduling of any re-approved allocations and/or (b) re-approval
as contingent allocations.

The Town fully intends to honor all allocations of record for two (2) years effective the
date this ordinance is passed. Allocations not used by the end of this two (2) year period
shall self terminate. 1f the owner of the allocation desires to extend the unused allocation,
a new allocation submission shall be required.




UTILITY SERVICE AGREEMENT
Town of Lake Lure, North Carolina

NAME;:

UTILITY SERVICE ADDRESS:

TOWN: STATE:; ZIP:
DIRECTIONS TO SERVICE LOCATION:

HOME PIIONE: WORK/CELL PHONE:

Forms of ID (2 — Req.): ODrivers License 0SS Card | ]Other

1 (1OWN) (0 RENT) THE STRUCTURE WHERE THIS SERVICE IS REQUESTED.
DOES THIS METER AT THIS ADDRESS SERVE ONLY THIS RESIDENCE OR BUSINESS? ' YES [ NO

BILLING ADDRESS: 1 SAME AS SERVICE ADDRESS U DIFFERENT ADDRESS (FILL IN)
ADDRESS:
CITY: ' STATE: ZIP:

STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT:

This agrecment, when signed by the customer and a Lake Lure representative, is a contract under which the Town of Lake Lure agrees to lurnish
waler and/or sewer service; and the customer agrees to pay for such service in accordance with applicable rates and fees, and abide by the lerms of
applicable Town Ordinances.

I understand that T will be subject to regular bi-monthly billing as of the date of the meter installation. Failure to pay fees in accordance with the
billing terms, town policies and ordinances, will result in turn off and possible disconnection. 1 understand that all tap fees and paymenis are non-
refundable.

I understand that bills are due when rendered and are delinguent after the tenth of the following month and will be subject to the late fee then in
effect. If payments are not made within ten days of delinquency/ cut off notices, service will be discontinued until the balance due is paid in full in
addition to a reconnection fee per service. I also understand that faiture to receive bills mailed will not prevent the bills from becoming delinquent
nor relieve me from payment, I understand that all payments will be applied to any applicable penaltics and oldest amounts due first. I understand
that all utility accounts in my name are tied together and must be paid in full in order to receive new service. I'a deposit is applicable, the Town of
Lake Lure agrees to credit the deposit, without interest, to the customer’s the final bill.

I agree that the Town of Lake Lure has the right to enter upon my property for the purpose of maintaining and operating its facilities, and may
exercise the right to discominue services and remove its facilities in case of violation of any of the terms of this agreement, or if any of the
information I have provided is found to be incorrect.

Your sewer connection approval is valid for two years. If the connection and final inspection cannot be made within this period, a new application
must be submitted with a new connection fee. The Town of Lake Lure must be notified at least 48 hours prior to starting final hookup and backfilling
of the line. Failure to notify the Town will result in penalty or immediate disconnect without notice. '

I'have read and understand these regulations and attest that all provided information on application is correct.

Customer Town of Lake Lure Representative Date
COMPLETED BY TOWN: 0 WATER ONLY [JSEWER ONLY [ WATER & SEWER FLES & CHARGES:
0 NEW CUSTOMER AT EXISTING SERVICE(Transfer Fec) UNPAID BALANCE
t NEW CUSTOMER NEEDING NEW SERVICE CONNECTION DEPOSIT

(Comnection/Impact Fees)
CONNECT
U EXISTING CUSTOMER APPLYING FOR RECONNECT
DUE TO CUT OFF FOR NON-PAYMENT {Reconnect Fee) RECONNECT
TRANSFER
PAID: CASH 0 CHECKO TOTAL DUE

NOTES:




